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 INDIVIDUAL REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF “LEASING FINANCE” EAD 

 DURING THE YEAR 2021 

 The present individual report on the Company's activities has been prepared in 

accordance with the provisions of Chapter seven of the Accounting law and the requirements 

of the Commercial law. 

 The individual report on the activity was adopted with the ratification of the protocol, 

dated 26.04.2022, of the Board of directors of the Company. 

 DESCRIPTION OF THE ACTIVITY 

 "Leasing Finance" EAD (the Company) was registered in accordance with the 

commercial legislation of the Republic of Bulgaria on December 27, 2004 in company file  

No. 13716/2004 under the name “Piraeus Leasing Bulgaria AD”. On July 2, 2012, “Piraeus 

Auto Leasing Bulgaria” EAD and “Piraeus Best Leasing” EAD joined this Company. The sole 

proprietor of its capital is "Finance Info Assistance" EOOD, as of August 3, 2016 (the date of 

registration in the Trade register /TR/). Until August 3, 2016, the co-proprietors of the 

company's capital are "Bank Piraeus" SA of Greece, with 95% participation and "Bank 

Piraeus Bulgaria" AD with 5% participation. On August 3, 2016, a change in the name of the 

company "Leasing Finance" EAD was entered in the Trade register. The company has an 

address of management in the city of Sofia, rgn. “Lozenets”, Blvd. “Cherni vruh” 53, 

registered in the state`s Trade Register on November 6, 2018. The previous address of 

management - until the change was brought into effect - was in the city of Sofia, rgn. 

“Oborishte”, “G. S. Rakovski” Str. No. 103, entered in the Trade register on December 2, 

2016. Prior to this change, the company's address of management was in the city of Sofia, 

rgn. “Mladost”, Blvd. “Tsarigradsko Shosse” No. 127 “A”. 

 The subject matter of the Company's activity, as per the registration, is: financial 

leasing, issuance and administration of alternative means of payment (traveler's checks and 

letters of credit), guarantee transactions, acquisition of credit claims and other forms of 

financing (factoring, forfeiting and others); acquisition of securities and shares for investment 

purposes in its own name and at its own expense and with its own funds, including in the 

performance of its secured or unsecured claims and taking other appropriate actions to 

protect the value of its investments. The subject matter of the Company's activity was 

supplemented during the previous reporting period and the change was entered in the Trade 

register on May 28, 2018. In 2021, the Company's activity mainly included financial and 

operational leasing. 

 The company is registered as a financial institution as per the provisions of Art. 3 “a” of 

the ZKI (Credit Institutions Act, Bul.) and was entered in the BNB`s (Bulgarian National Bank) 
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register for financial institutions under registration number BGR00181, on the grounds of 

BNB Order No. БНБ-61708/03.07.2015 (previously under Order РД22-0767/31.03.2010). 

 The company is not a public establishment within the meaning of the ZPPCK (Law of 

Public Offering and trade in Securities, Bul.). 

 As of December 31, 2021, the Company has no registered branches in the country or 

abroad. 

 ACTIVITY OVERVIEW 

 Development and results from the company's activity 

 The portfolio of leased assets is highly diversified and consists of real estate properties, 

vehicles, agricultural machinery, manufacturing and technological equipment. 

 In 2021, the Company reduced its receivables under leasing contracts by BGN 4,864 

Thsd. when compared to December 31, 2020. 

 No assets, under lease contracts, were collected in 2021. During the same period, 

sales of returned cars from operational leasing were reported at a value of BGN 10 Thsd. 

 On February 14, 2017, at one of its sessions, the Board of directors of the Company 

decided to establish a sole propriety limited liability company in the Republic of Macedonia 

which is to be engaged in the sphere of operational leasing. 

Development and results from the company's activity (continued) 

 On March 1, 2017, at its regular meeting, the Board of directors of the Company took 

the decision to acquire 100% of the capital of a company registered in the Republic of 

Bulgaria, dealing mainly with the leasing of assets. On July 3, 2017, at its meeting, the Board 

of directors of the Company decided on the final acquisition of 1,000 shares, each with a 

nominal value of BGN 2,300 and with a total nominal value of BGN 2,300,000, representing 

100% of the capital of "TBI Rent" EAD. On July 5, 2017, the Board of directors of the 

Company decided to change the name of the subsidiary from “TBI Rent” EAD to “M RENT” 

EAD. During 2021, this subsidiary company has successfully developed its activities and has 

reported a positive financial result as well as an increase in net assets at the end of that 

same year. 

 On March 22, 2017, at a regular session, the Board of directors of the Company 

decided to enter into a purchase and sale agreement, in conformity with which the Company 

shall be the buyer and shall acquire the right of proprietorship of 4 Boeing 737-300 PAX 
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airplanes and 1 aircraft engine. The assets are let on the basis of an operational lease (“dry” 

aircraft leasing). 

 In 2017 and 2018, the Company successfully applied for and was able to receive 

financing with bank loans from the Commercial Bank “UniCredit Bulbank” AD, and as of 

December 31, 2021, it has received a total of three loans from that bank: for the purchase of 

the aircraft and the aircraft engine as well as for the purchase of assets to be let as 

operational leases and for the purchase of assets for financial leasing. These are loans long-

term loans with maturities set for the months of June 2024 and March 2023. The joint debtor 

for the bank loans is the parent company "Finance Info Assistance" EOOD. Currently, the 

company is servicing its obligations regarding the received bank loans. In September of 

2020, the loan for the purchase of assets to be leased was repaid ahead of schedule. 

 In addition to the above described activities, during the 2017-2021 period, the 

Company has received financing from "Finance Security Group" AD - the sole proprietor of 

the parent Company, as well as from other related and unrelated parties. 

 The liabilities to the Parent company, which it had acquired in 2016, together with the 

acquisition of the proprietorship of the Company are being repaid on an ongoing basis and 

without delays. 

 On May 15, 2018, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company made a 

decision based on Art. 232 “a” in conjunction with Art. 221, item 1 of the Commercial Code 

and Art. 27, item 1 of the Company's Articles of Association to supplement the Company's 

subject of activity with the following elements: acquisition of securities and shares for 

investment purposes on its own behalf and at its own expense and with its own funds, 

including the performance in respect of its secured or unsecured claims and taking other 

appropriate actions to protect the value of its investments. 

 On May 20, 2018, at a regular session, the Company's Board of directors decided to 

adopt and approve internal rules regarding the protection of personal data in connection with 

the newly adopted GDPR rules. 

 On September 3, 2018, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company decided 

to conclude a purchase and sale agreement, in conformity with which the Company shall be 

the seller which shall proceed to sell sale an investment property located on Blvd. “Prof. 

Tsvetan Lazarov” №. 123 in the city of Sofia. As a result from that sale, a profit of BGN 

488,000 was realized. 
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 On September 10, 2018, at a regular session, the Board of directors of the Company 

decided to participate in the establishment of a special investment purpose company within 

the meaning of the law on Special Investment Purpose Companies Act. Upon the 

establishment of "Finance Assistance Management" ADSIC (Joint-stock Company for 

Special Investment Purposes, Bul.), the Company made a monetary contribution in the 

amount of BGN 175,000, representing the value of 175,000 ordinary dematerialized voting 

shares, and a nominal emission value of BGN 1 (one Lev) each. 

 On September 10, 2018, at one of its sessions, the Company's Board of directors 

decided to enter into a purchase and sale agreement in which the Company shall be the 

buyer and the Bank of Utah - not in an individual capacity, but rather a proprietor-trustee 

relationship under a trust agreement concluded between it and “Rostrum Leasing” DAC - in 

its capacity of seller, by virtue of which the Company acquires the right of proprietorship of 3 

fuselages Boeing B 737-300. These fuselages are purchased without engines and the other 

related components which are considered to be parts of the Boeing 737 QEC configuration, 

except for those parts specifically described in the purchase agreement, which are 

considered parts of each of these fuselages. As of December 31, 2021, the assets are 

offered for operational leasing (“dry” aircraft leasing). 

 On November 21, 2018, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company took the 

decision to participate in the establishment of a Company with subject of activity: granting 

loans with the use of funds which are not raised via the public attraction of deposits or other 

recoverable funds. During the establishment of "Sky Pay" AD, the Company has made a 

monetary contribution in the amount of BGN 500, representing the value of 500 ordinary 

dematerialized voting shares and a nominal and emission value of BGN 1 (one Lev) each. 

 On May 15, 2019, at a regular session, the Board of directors of the Company decided 

to enter into an Agreement for the purchase of all of the shares in the registered capital of the 

Company "Hems Air" EOOD /previously named “Darik Sky”/, representing 13,000 /thirteen 

thousand/ shares with a nominal value of BGN 180 each or to the total nominal value of BGN 

2,340,000, constituting 100% of the Company's capital at a price of BGN 450,000 and the 

available means in cash or to the total selling price of BGN 780,504. The balance sheet 

value of "Hems Air" EOOD in "Leasing Finance" EAD is BGN 817,664. 

 On July 18, 2019, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company decided to 

increase the capital of "Finance Assistance Management" ADSIC - a company with a special 

investment purpose within the meaning of the Law on Companies with a Special Investment 

Purpose with a cash contribution of 52 500 ordinary dematerialized voting shares at a 

nominal and emission value of BGN 1 (one Lev) each. 
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 On October 7, 2019, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company decided on 

the purchase and sale of all ordinary registered shares from the capital of the Company "New 

Web Market" EAD, representing 50,000 /fifty thousand/ shares with a nominal value of BGN 

1 each, constituting 100% of the Company's capital at a price of BGN 206,359.38. 

 On December 18, 2020, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company decided 

to increase the capital of "M Rent" EAD with a cash contribution of BGN 350,000. The 

Company's capital is BGN 2,650,000, distributed in 1,000 registered shares with the right to 

one vote, each with a nominal value of BGN 2,650. 

 On December 1, 2020, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company decided 

to enter into a purchase and sale agreement in the capacity of buyer and “Bul Air” EOOD - 

the seller – by virtue of which the Company acquires the right of proprietorship of 3 aircraft – 

helicopters. As of 31.12.2021, these assets have not been leased (“dry” aircraft leasing). 

 On January 19, 2021, at a regular session, the Board of directors of the Company 

decided to enter into a bank loan agreement with the commercial bank “Texim Bank” in order 

to secure working capital. Collateral: future receivables under financial leasing contracts. 

 On February 24, 2021, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company decided to 

enter into an agreement for an overdraft bank loan with “Central Cooperative Bank” AD. The 

purpose of the loan is to supplement the working capital, to purchase 4 helicopters EC 135 T 

2. A bank credit-overdraft was utilized as of 31.12.2021 in the amount of BGN 12,500,000. 

Collateral: pledge of the aircraft after registration in the General Civil Aviation Directorate. 

The other collateral is as follows: 

1.  First in line pledge of a temporary certificate for 1,000 available shares from the 

capital of “M RENT” EAD with UIC 131455456 

2. First in line special pledge, entered as per the provisions of Art. 303 on 1,477,575 

shares, representing 52.03% of the capital of “Web Media Group” AD, UIC 

131387286 

3. First in line special pledge, entered as per the provisions of Art. 303 on 480,100 

shares, representing 32.01% of the capital of “Bulgarian Receivables Fund” AD, UIC 

204909069, owned by “Bulfinance Investment” AD 

4. Agreement for financial security with the provision of a pledge on 177,000 shares of 

the NDF Dinamik contractual fund, UIC 177474752, managed by the controlling 

company "Strategy Asset Management" AD, UIC 175126124, owned by “Deniz 

2001” EOOD 
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5. Agreement for financial security with the provision of a pledge on 30,000 shares of 

the NDF Dinamik contractual fund, UIC 177474752, managed by the controlling 

company "Strategy Asset Management" AD, UIC 175126124, owned by “Ecoland 

Engineering” EOOD 

6. First in line special pledge, entered as per the provisions of Art. 303 on 350,000 

shares, representing 3.60% of the capital of “Park” ADSIC, UIC 131401280, owned 

by “Leasing Finance” EAD 

7. First in line special pledge, entered as per the provisions of Art. 303 on 157,500 

shares, representing 33.85% of the capital of “Finance Assistance Management” 

ADSIC, UIC 205350597, owned by “Leasing Finance” EAD 

8.  A financial security contract with the provision of a pledge on 179,000 shares of the 

NDF Dinamik contractual fund, UIC 177474752, managed by the controlling 

company "Strategy Asset Management" AD, UIC 175126124, owned by “Leasing 

Finance” EAD 

9. A financial security contract with the provision of a pledge on 178,000 shares of the 

NDF Dynamic mutual fund, UIC 177474752, managed by the controlling company 

"Strategy Asset Management" AD, UIC 175126124, “Finance Info Assistance” 

EOOD 

10. A financial security contract with the provision of a pledge on 59,300 shares of the 

NDF Dinamik contractual fund, UIC 177474752, managed by the controlling 

company "Strategy Asset Management" AD, UIC 175126124, owned by “Finance 

Security Group” AD 

11. First in line special pledge entered as per the provisions of Art. 303 on 7,770,865 

shares, representing 6.89% of the capital of “Interfund Investment” PLC, owned by 

“Finance Security Group” AD 

12.  Contract of guarantee concluded with “Finance Info Assistance” EOOD, UIC 

130997190 

 On June 7, 2021, at a regular session, the Board of directors of the Company decided 

to participate in the establishment of a Company with subject matter of activity: “Theoretical 

and practical training, education, retraining, maintenance and restoration of qualification of 

aviation specialists – aviation, engineering – technical, ground staff; air traffic controllers; 

dispatchers – operations center; aviation security specialists; aviation auditors. Development 

of new educational programs, approaches /and their presentation/ for solving problems and 

dealing with challenges in extraordinary conditions of irregularity, crises, collapses in the 

aviation business. Offering dry and wet leasing services for the training of aviation personnel 

for the needs of external customers. Programs for the selection of candidates for flight, 

technical, engineering, ground staff for the needs of airlines and aviation organizations. 
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Conducting theoretical and practical classes on training programs and courses and 

preliminary preparation of pilot, cabin, engineering, technical staff, ground staff for training in 

training complexes, as well as conducting and offering necessary resources for meetings, 

conferences on issues and topics related with the activities of organizations and companies 

serving and working in the Aviation sector and beyond. Theoretical courses covering 

requirements and regulations of DG GVA (Chief directorate of Civil aviation, Bul.), EASA, 

IATA, new procedures and innovative practices in navigation, noise-free procedures, and 

environmental protection. Training in simulator complexes for training/practical classes and 

flight crew checks as well as training in emergency rescue procedures and the use of means 

in conformity with EASA document # 1178 and the Civil Aviation Law of the Republic of 

Bulgaria”. During the establishment of "Aeronautical Training Academy" JSC, a monetary 

contribution was made in the amount of BGN 50,000, representing the value of 50,000 

ordinary registered voting shares with a nominal and emission value of BGN 1 (one Lev) 

each. The founders proceeded to register the following shares: 

“Finance Info Assistance” EOOD – 2,500 shares; 

“LEASING FINANCE” EAD – 47,500 shares. 

The entire capital was subscribed and paid up by the founders. 

 On June 24, 2021, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company decided to 

enter into a purchase and sale agreement to be signed between the Company, as the buyer, 

and “GY Aviation Lease 103 Co. Limited” in the capacity of the seller of 3 aircraft type A319 - 

11, without the engines. 

 On November 3, 2021, at a regular session, the Board of directors of the Company 

decided to acquire the proprietorship of the shares of the capital of “LF Imoti” EOOD, 

representing 533,400 /five hundred thirty-three thousand and four hundred/ shares with a 

nominal value of BGN 1 /one Lev/ each, constituting 100% of the Company's capital. 

 On November 8, 2021, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company decided 

to enter into a bank loan agreement with “Central Cooperative Bank” AD. Purpose of the 

loan: purchasing 100% of the  shares of the company “LF Imoti” EOOD and financing the 

acquisition of a real estate property, located in PLeven, rgn. “Tekiyski orman” area. The sum 

of the utilized bank loan, as of 31.12.2021, is in the amount of BGN 1,445,000. Collateral: 

 LAND PROPERTY with identifier 56722.351.955, with address at: PLeven, rgn. 

"Tekiyski Orman", with permanent purpose of the territory: urbanized and permanent use of 

the territory: High-rise development (over 15 meters), with an area: 22,399 sq. m., with 

previous identifier 56722.351.940 and number in conformity with previous plan: formed by 
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land with identifier 56722.351 and parts of land properties with identifier 56722.351.939 and 

56722.351.936, 

 LAND PROPERTY with identifier 56722.25.613 with address at: city of PLeven, rgn. 

"Tekiyski Orman", with permanent purpose of the territory: urbanized and method of 

permanent use of the territory: for another public object, a complex, with area: 11 777 sq. m., 

with previous identifiers 56722.351.963 and 56722.351.9 and 56722.25.166 and number as 

per a previous plan: 0.166 ; 351.3; 351.963 

 LAND PROPERTY with identifier 56722.351.949 in conformity with the cadastral map 

and cadastral registers of the city of PLeven, municipality of PLeven, district of PLeven, 

approved by Order No. РД-18-71/06.06.2008 issued by the Executive Director of the 

Cadastral agency, last amendment of the cadastral map and the cadastral registers 

concerning the land property: no data on any changes with the address of the property in the 

city of PLeven, rgn. "Tekiyski Orman", with the permanent purpose of the territory: urbanized 

and the way of permanent use of the territory: for another type of manufacture, storage 

facility, with area: 14,754 square meters, with previous identifier 56722.351.937 and previous 

plan number: none 

 LAND with identifier 56722.351.941, with an area of 6,566 sq. m., and permanent use: 

for another type of manufacture, storage facility, permanent purpose of the territory: 

urbanized, address of the land in PLeven: rgn. "Tekiyski Orman" with old identifier: 

56722.351.937 and reg. number in conformity with the previous plan: none 

 LAND PROPERTY with identifier 56722.351.942, with an area of 6,601 sq. m., and 

permanent use: for another type of manufacture, storage site, permanent purpose of the 

territory: urbanized, address of the land in the city of PLeven, rgn. "Tekiyski Orman", old 

identifier 56722.351.937, number in conformity with the previous plan: none 

 LAND with identifier 56722.351.943, with an area of 6,598 sq. m. and permanent use: 

for another type of manufacture, storage facility, permanent purpose of the territory: 

urbanized, address of the land in the city of PLeven, rgn. "Tekiyski Orman", old identifier 

56722.351.937 and number in conformity with the previous plan: none 

 LAND PROPERTY with identifier 56722.351.950, with an area of 890 sq.m., type of 

permanent use: for a local road, permanent purpose of the territory: urbanized with address 

of the land property in PLeven, rgn. "Tekiyski Orman", old identifier 56722.351.937 and  reg. 

number as per previous plans: none 

 LAND PROPERTY with identifier 56722.351.965, with an area of 4,744 sq.m., type of 

permanent use: for a local road, permanent purpose of the territory: urbanized, address of 

the land property in PLeven, rgn. "Tekiyski Orman", old identifier 56722.351.947 and reg. 

number as per previous plans: none 
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 On November 16, 2021, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company decided 

to acquire the proprietorship of the shares from the capital of the company “Keti Travel” 

EOOD, representing 50 /fifty/ shares with a nominal value of BGN 100 /one hundred Levs/ 

each or at a total nominal value BGN 5,000 /five thousand Levs/, constituting 100% of the 

Company's capital. 

 On November 16, 2021, at its meeting, the Board of directors of the Company decided 

to acquire the proprietorship of the shares from the capital of the company “Aircraft Lease” 

EOOD, representing 100,000 /one hundred thousand/ shares with a nominal value of BGN 

10 /ten Levs/ each or to the total nominal value of BGN 1,000,000 /one million Levs/, 

constituting 100% of that company's capital. 

 During the reporting year 2021, new contracts for financial and operating leasing were 

concluded, with which new customers were included in the company's portfolio and the 

management's intentions are to continue this in the following reporting periods. 

 The company's activity is associated with financial risks, including credit and liquidity 

risks, as well as the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and changes in 

interest rates. The company's overall risk management policy is aimed at minimizing the 

potential adverse impacts on the company's financial status: 

•  First Level:   up to EUR 150,000 financed amount; 

•  Second Level:  over EUR 150,000 and up to EUR 2,000,000 financed amount; 

•  Third Level:   over EUR 2,000,000 and up to EUR 5,000,000 financed  

    amount. 

  The term „financed amount” should be accepted to mean the difference between 

the purchase price of the leased object and the client's own participation The amounts, 

described above, also include the credit exposure of the same client, or a group of clients 

related to "Leasing Finance" EAD and/or "Finance Info Assistance” EOOD. For each Level of 

approval dully authorized persons have been nominated who are authorized to take the 

respective decisions. These individuals are determined in conformity with the internal 

procedures adopted at "Leasing Finance" EAD. 

 When making a decision on the possible approval of the submitted requests for 

financing, the following main parameters are placed for analysis: 

•  The customer's solvency based on customer's historical financial data and the 

compiled history of the payments it has performed (if any); 
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•  The leased object, its major characteristics, the proposed purchase price, the 

secondary market of the leased object, etc.; 

•  The parameters of the specific leasing transaction, including the client's own 

participation, the repayment period, the collateral for the transaction, etc. 

 As a result of the described analyses, the representatives of „Leasing Finance“ EAD 

assess the credit risk from the specific transaction and make a decision on whether to 

approval of the transaction at the parameters requested by the client, or to approve the 

transaction with parameters other than those requested by the client in order to reduce of the 

credit risk or to fully reject the entire transaction. 

 FINANCIAL REPORT AND ANALYSIS 

 The main economic indicators, characterizing the Company's activity, are: 

 

In BGN Thsd.           2021      2020 

Revenue           8,602     5,059 

Expense          8,378     4,888 

Financial result before taxation         224       171 

Financial autonomy          2021      2020 

Coefficient of financial autonomy     0.2062   0.2388 

Debt ratio         4.8502   4.1884 

Liquidity            2021      2020 

Total liquidity ratio       0.6857   1.1010 

Quick liquidity ratio       0.5717   0.8987 

Immediate liquidity ratio      0.4155   0.5729 

Absolute liquidity ratio       0.0285   0.0099 

 

Efficiency           2021      2020 

Expense         0.8118   1.0488 

Revenue         1.2319   0.9535 

Profitability           2021     2020 

Equity         0.0108   0.0083 

Assets         0.0018   0.0016 

Liabilities         0.0022   0.0020 

Revenue from sales      0.1244   0.0765 



 

13 

 

 Structure of the fixed capital 

 The share capital of “LEASING FINANCE” EAD as of December 31, 2021 amounted to 

BGN 39,577,452 (thirty-nine million, five hundred and seventy-seven thousand, four hundred 

and fifty-two Levs) and is fully paid up. It is divided into 425,564 /four hundred and twenty-

five thousand, five hundred and sixty-four/ ordinary shares, each with a nominal value of 

BGN 93 (equivalent to EUR 48). 

 In 2014, the Company's shareholders decided to reduce the capital in order to cover 

accumulated losses until 2012 and to contribute part of the capital to the "Reserve" fund. The 

amount of the capital, prior to reduction, is BGN 10,756,000 (ten million, seven hundred and 

fifty-six thousand Levs), where with a part of it, amounting to BGN 7,601,000 (seven million, 

six hundred and one thousand Levs) covered losses up to and including 2012, and the other 

part in the amount of BGN 2,154,692 (two million one hundred and fifty-four thousand, six 

hundred and ninety-two Levs) was contributed to the "Reserve" fund. The decision to reduce 

the capital was announced in the Commercial register on January 20, 2015 and was officially 

entered on May 4, 2015. After the reduction, the Company's registered capital amounted to 

BGN 1,000,308 (one million, three hundred and eight thousand Levs). 

 In 2016, the company's registered capital was doubled through contributions of 

receivables from the Company to the sole proprietor, "Finance Info Assistance" EOOD. The 

capital increases were entered in the Commercial register on December 21 and 29 th of 2016. 

After the two increases, the company's registered capital amounted to BGN 28,577,412 

(twenty-eight million, five hundred seventy-seven thousand, four hundred and twelve Levs). 

 In 2017 and 2018, no changes were made to the Company's registered capital. 

 On December 27, 2019, the sole proprietor of the capital of "Leasing Finance" EAD 

decided to increase the capital of the Company by issuing a new package of 118,280 /one 

hundred and eighteen thousand, two hundred and eighty/ ordinary registered shares with a 

nominal value of BGN 93 /ninety three Levs/ per share, bringing to a total increase of BGN 

11,000,040 /eleven million and forty Levs/. The shareholder has registered a monetary 

contribution to the company's bank account and this fact was entered in the Trade register on 

06.01.2020. 

 Board of directors 

 As of December 31, 2021 and by the date set for the preparation of the individual 

financial report, the company is run by a Board of directors staffed by: 

Mr. Marin Ivanov Stoev   - executive member of the Board of directors 

Mr. Romil Svetozarov Zlatanov  - member of the Board of directors 
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Mr. Zdravko Atanasov Stoev  - Chairman of the Board of directors 

 In 2021, no changes in the staff of the Company's Board of directors were made. 

 The company is represented jointly by Mr. Marin Ivanov Stoev and Zdravko Atanasov 

Stoev. 

 Marin Ivanov Stoev, in the capacity of the Executive director of the Company as of 

December 31, 2021, does not participate in commercial companies as a general partner, 

does not own more than 25% of the capital of any other companies and participates in the 

management of the following companies: 

 Deputy Chairman of the Board of directors of “M RENT” EAD, with UIC 131455456, 

with registered office and address of management: Sofia, rgn. Lozenets, blvd. “Cherni Vrah” 

No. 53 

 Executive Director of “NEW WEB MARKET” EAD, with UIC 201507193, with registered 

office and address of management: city of Sofia, rgn. Lozenets, blvd. “Cherni Vrah” No. 53 

 Executive Director of “WEB MEDIA GROUP” AD, with UIC 131387286, having 

headquarters and address of management: Sofia, rgn. “Izgrev”, "Frederick Joliot Curie" street 

№ 20, 10th floor. 

 Chairman of the Board of directors of “SKY PAY” AD, with UIC 205421578, with 

headquarters and address of management: Sofia, rgn. “Oborishte”, “Vrabcha” St. No. 8. 

 Manager of “BULAIR” EOOD, with UIC 831032406, with registered office and address 

of management: Sofia, rgn. “Slatina”, Blvd. “Brussels” No. 1 

 Chairman of the Board of directors of “AIRPORT SERVICES DEVELOPMENT” EAD, 

UIC 203922423, with registered office and address of management: Sofia, rgn. “Sredets”, 

“Shipka” Str. № 36, 3-rd floor 

 Member of the management board of the ASSOCIATION OF BULGARIAN AIRLINES 

/ABA/, UIC 130848481, with registered office and address of management in Sofia, rgn. 

“Slatina”, 1 Blvd. “Brussels”, Sofia Airport, IVT Building 

 Manager at “M INS” EOOD, Skopje, UIC 4057017536024, (incorporated in the 

Republic of North Macedonia, a name which is not transliterated in Bulgarian: “M INS 

DOOEL Skopje”) 
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 Representative, on the grounds of Art. 234, par. 1 of the Trade law, of “LEASING 

FINANCE” EAD, UIC 131352367, in its capacity of a member of the Board of directors of 

"AVIATION TRAINING ACADEMY AD, UIC 206543624, with headquarters and address of 

management: Sofia, blvd. “Brussels” No. 1. 

 Manager at “RADIO STATION” EOOD, with UIC 201446801, with registered office and 

address of management: city of Sofia, Sofia municipality, PCode 1113, rgn. “Izgrev”, 

"Frederick Jolio Curie" str. No. 20, 10th floor. 

 Member of the Board of directors of “V AIR” EAD, UIC 204192347, with headquarters 

and address of management in the city of Varna, P.C. 9000, rgn. “Primorski”, Blvd. “General 

KoLev” No. 60, 2-nd floor, Apt. 5. 

 Zdravko Atanasov Stoev, in the capacity of Chairman of the Board of directors of the 

Company as of December 31, 2021, does not participate in commercial companies as a 

general partner, does not own more than 25% of the capital of any other company and in the 

management of the following companies: 

 “NEW WEB MARKET” EAD, with headquarters and address of management in Sofia, 

Blvd. “Cherni Vrah” №. 53, entered in the commercial register under № UIC 201507193 - 

Chairman of the Board of directors and representing the company; 

 ”SKY PAY” AD, with registered office and address of management: Sofia, “Vrabcha” 

Str №. 8, entered in the commercial register under UIC № 205421578 - Executive director; 

 “FINANCE ASSISTANCE MANAGEMENT” ADSIC, with headquarters and address of 

management: Sofia, "Vrabcha" street No. 8, UIC 205350597 - Member of the board of 

directors; 

 “HEMS AIR” EOOD, with headquarters and address of management: Sofia, "Papa Ioan 

Pavel Vtori" square №1, registered in the commercial register under UIC № 130690145 - 

Manager; 

 “FINANCE INFO ASSISTANCE” EOOD, with headquarters and address of 

management: Sofia, "Vrabcha" Str. No. 8, entered in the commercial register under UIC № 

130997190 - Manager; 

 “FINANCE SECURITIES GROUP” AD, with headquarters and address of 

management: Sofia, "Vrabcha" street No. 8, registered in the commercial register under UIC 

№ 202191129 - Chairman of the board of directors and representing the company; 
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 “WEB MEDIA GROUP” AD, with headquarters and address of management: Sofia, 

"Frederick Joliot Curie" str., № 20, 10th floor, entered in the Commercial Register at the 

Registration Agency under UIC № 131387286 - Chairman of the Board of directors and 

representing the company; 

 “PARK” ADSIC, with registered office and address of management: Sofia, Blvd. “Cherni 

Vrah” №. 53, entered in the Commercial Register at the Registration Agency under UIC № 

131401280 - Member of the Board of directors and representing the company; 

 “Aviation Training Academy” JSC, with headquarters and address of management: 

Sofia, Blvd. “Brussels” No. 1, registered in the Commercial Register at the Registration 

Agency under UIC № 206543624 - Executive director; 

 “RADIO STATION” EOOD, UIC 201446801, with registered office and address of 

management: city of Sofia, Sofia municipality, PC 1113, rgn. “Izgrev”, "Frederick Jolio Curie" 

street № 20, 10th floor - Manager; 

 “V AIR” EAD, UIC: 204192347, with headquarters and address of management: city of 

Varna, rgn. “Primorski”, Blvd. “General KoLev”, No. 60, fl. 2, apartment 5 – Member of the 

board of directors; 

  “VOYAGE AIR” OOD, UIC 148084685, with headquarters and address of 

management: city of Varna, rgn. “Primorski”, Blvd. “General KoLev” No. 60, 2-nd floor, 

apartment 5 – Procurator. 

 Romil Svetosarov Zlatanov, in the capacity of member of the Board of directors of the 

Company as of December 31, 2021, does not participate in commercial companies as a 

general partner, does not own more than 25% of the capital of other companies and 

participates in the management of the following companies: 

 • Sky Pay AD – member of the Board of directors. 

 During the year of 2021, the members of the company's Board of directors have 

received remuneration in the amount of BGN 234 000. 

 In 2021, the members of the Company's Board of directors have not entered into any 

contracts with the Company which go beyond its usual activities or significantly deviate from 

the currently observed market conditions. 

 During 2021, the members of the company's Board of directors have not acquired 

shares from its capital. The members of the Board of directors of the company do not enjoy 

the preferential rights to acquire shares and bonds from the Company. 
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 INFORMATION TO BE SUBMITTED AS PER THE PROVISIONS OF Art. 187 “д” OF 

THE COMMERCIAL LAW 

 During the year 2021, no company owned shares were acquired or transferred from the 

company's capital. As of December 31, 2021, the Company does not possess any shares 

from its own capital. 

 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

 The company operates at the following address: Sofia, rgn. “Lozenets”, blvd. “Cherni 

Vrah” No. 53. 

 

 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 

 In 2021, the company has not carried out any research and development activities. 

 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 The balance sheet values of the Company's financial assets and liabilities (financial 

instruments) can be presented as arranged in the following categories: 

 

In BGN Thsd.            2021      2020 

Financial assets 

Debt instruments at their depreciated cost: 

    Bonds           2,736     2,758 

    Net investment in financial leasing     5,448   10,312 

    Other financial assets      15,488   12,993 

    Other receivables from related parties    -     1,731 

    Loans granted       10,204   19,574 

    Cash           1,064       256 

         34,940   47,624 

Financial assets at their fair value through profit and loss: 

    Capital instruments         3,386    1,322 

           3,386     1,322 

 

In BGN Thsd.           2021      2020 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities reported at their depreciated cost: 

    Bank and other loans      38,400   25,988 

    Liabilities to related parties     39,047   36,014 

    Accounts payable and other liabilities      7,295     7,016 

    Lease related liabilities           967     1,370 
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         85,709   70,388 

 

 BUSINESS GOALS FOR THE YEAR 2022 

 In 2022, the Company plans to continue its leasing activity and the activity related to 

obtaining and selling assets from customers failing to service their leasing contracts. It has 

been planned to obtain financing with bank loans, as well as from related parties, in order to 

purchase new assets and offer them as a financial and operational lease in order to expand 

the Company's activities and increase its customer base. 

 In 2022 the company plans to purchase 2 aircraft – Embraer manufactured airplanes – 

with an investment loan received from a foreign legal entity. 

 The adopted include the positive development of the Company's activities, stabilization 

of its financial condition /which can currently be described as “good”/ and regular servicing of 

its obligations under the received bank credits, the loans from related parties and other 

current obligations. 

 EVENTS WHICH HAVE OCCURRED AFTER THE DATE OF PREPARATION OF 

THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

 On February 24, 2022, the Russian Federation launched an armed invasion of the 

Ukraine. As a result, economic and financial sanctions were imposed on Russia by the 

European Union and a number of other countries, which – in addition to the effect on Russia 

itself – are expected to have am all-around negative effect on the global economy and almost 

every sphere of public life in the medium and long term perspective. The company has no 

assets and no direct relationships with counterparties from the countries affected by the 

military conflict. The impact of the events, related to the military conflict, on the general 

economic situation may require a revision of some assumptions and judgments. This may 

result in some material adjustments to the carrying amount of certain assets and liabilities 

within the next financial year. Since the situation is very dynamic, the management is unable 

to come up with any good enough forecasts about the quantitative impact of the crisis on the 

company's financial situation, but it will take all of the necessary measures to limit the 

potential negative effects and to protect the interests of the engaged parties (bond holders, 

shareholders, counterparties and others.).  

 In April 2022, the Company entered into a long-term credit agreement in connection 

with the purchase of two aircraft of significant value. In June 2022, the Company entered into 

an agreement to purchase 100% equity ownership of a non-public subsidiary.  
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 RISK MANAGEMENT 

 Capital risk management 

 Regarding capital management risks, the management's objectives are directed to 

protecting the Company's right to continue as a profitable proprietor. 

 The management of the Company controls the capital on the basis of the ratio of 

equity/paid up capital (indebtedness ratio). This ratio is calculated by dividing net liabilities by 

total equity. Net liabilities are calculated by deducting cash and cash equivalents from the 

total liabilities (“current and non-current liabilities” inclusive, as shown in the Statement of 

Financial Position). Total equity is calculated by adding "equity" (as shown in the Financial 

status report) to net liabilities. 

 

In BGN Thsd. 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 
   
Type   
Total debt capital, incl.: 100,893   86,194 
Trade payables 23,446  24,192 
Obligations for bank and other loans 38,400   25,988 
Trade credits and loans to related parties and 
commodity credits 

39,047 36,014 

Reduced by cash and cash equivalents  (1,064)      (256) 
Net debt capital 99,829     85,938 

Total equity 20,802    20,578 
Total capital 120,631   106,516 

Ratio of net debt to total capital 0.828       0.807 

            

 Financial risk management 

 The company has exposure to the following financial risks: 

•  credit risk; 
•  liquidity risk; 
•  market risk; 
• operational risk. 

 The present report discloses information regarding the Company's exposure to each of 

the aforementioned risks, the Company's goals, the evaluation policies and processes, the 

risk and capital management. Additional quantitative disclosures are included in the notes to 

the individual financial reports (note № 5). 

  

 Credit risk 
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 The country's credit risk is related to the country's ability to regularly serve its debts. In 

this regard, Bulgaria is constantly improving its position on the international debt markets, 

which facilitates the access of the state and economic agents to financing from external 

sources. The most important effect from the credit rating improvement is the lowering of the 

risk premiums on loans, leading to more favorable interest rates (given other equal 

conditions). For this reason, the potential increase in the country's credit rating will have a 

favorable impact on the Company's activities and - more specifically - on its financing. On the 

other hand, a downgrade of Bulgaria's credit rating would have a negative impact on the 

company's cost of financing, unless its loan agreements operate at fixed interest rates. 

 The largest international rating agency, S&P Global Ratings (Standard & Poor's), has 

confirmed the long-term and short-term credit rating of Bulgaria in foreign and local 'BBB' 

currency with a positive outlook. The formation of the coalition government in December of 

2021 has significantly reduced political uncertainty. 

 The agencies forecasts include an average annual inflation rising to 5.2 % in 2022, 

"driven by higher commodity prices and – to a lesser extent – by domestic demand 

pressures". 

 The credit risk is a possibility of losses resulting from the borrower's inability to repay a 

loan or fulfill its contractual obligations. Traditionally, it refers to the risk that the creditor will 

not receive the due principal and interest which may lead to the disruption of cash flows and 

increased collection costs. The company is faced by a credit risk based on its operational 

activities – financial and operational leasing. 

 Prior to entering into a lease contract – and subsequently – the enterprises-lessees are 

placed under an analysis as well as their economic potential and available assets and 

liabilities. Their credibility and economic activity are also monitored. Prepayments, under 

some of the lease contracts, are an indicator of the correct assessment of the ability of the 

lessees to meet their financial obligations. 

 Investments 

 The company does not invest in debt securities in order to limit its exposure to credit 

riskя. It invests in the acquisition of receivables, shares/shares in enterprises and liquid 

securities. 

 Liquidity risk 

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulties in servicing its 

financial obligations. The Company's approach to liquidity risk management is to ensure, to 
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the greatest extent possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity available to service its 

maturing obligations – both under normal and extraordinary conditions – without this leading 

to additional losses or reputational risks. 

 Market risk 

 The market risk is the threat to investments or companies from adverse price dynamics 

of certain assets or the markets in general. An example of a market risk is the loss of value 

as a result of high inflation rates or the increase of the monthly loan fees as a result of rising 

interest rates in the economy. As at December 31, 2021 the Company has invested in equity 

instruments quoted in public markets with a fair value of BGN 3,386 Thsd. (31.12.2020 – 

BGN 1,332 Thsd.). 

 

 Currency risk 

 The major feature of this risk lies in the possibility of a sharp devaluation of the local 

currency, thus leading to detrimental impacts on the economic players in the country which 

suffer the affects from the changes in the exchange rate of the Lev against other currencies. 

Fixing the exchange rate of the Bulgarian Lev (BGN) to the single European currency (EUR) 

limits fluctuations in the exchange rate of the national currency against the major foreign 

currencies within the range of fluctuations occurring between these currencies and the Euro. 

 The Company is not exposed to a currency risk insofar as all of its assets and liabilities 

are denominated in the Bulgarian Lev or the Euro. A currency risk would occur in the event of 

a change in the Lev to Euro ratio, for which the management has so far received no 

information or forecasts. 

 Interest rate risk 

 The interest rate risk is related to the increase in interest rates, respectively interest 

costs, which is directly reflected in the realized profit of the economic enterprises. To reduce 

the risk on the part of the state, various financial methods of debt management are 

undertaken and although interest rate risks are a part of the risks associated with the macro 

economic environment, in the presence of high volatility in interest rates measures can be 

taken to limit the impact of the expected increase by using interest rate risk hedging 

methods. 

 Leasing Finance EAD's financial position and cash flows are exposed to the impact of 

changes in market interest rates. As most interest bearing assets /borrowings under finance 

lease agreements/ and accordingly liabilities/loans/ are floating rate, management considers 

the risk to be high. 

 Operational risk 
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 Currently the company considers the operational risk as being insignificant to non-

existent. Since decisions are made by the Board of directors and the Executive director and 

as the Company does not have a large personnel, operational risks related to the human 

factor is almost absent. Changes in the legal and regulatory requirements regarding the 

Company's activity are not predicted when considering the analysis of the changes 

performed so far, of the activities it carries out as well as the available signs of changes in 

the national legislation. In its operations and, indeed, the operations of the companies within 

the group headed by the parent Company, strict monitoring and responsible behavior  

serving to protect their reputation and the image the company has built before its 

counterparties are the founding principles. 

 Regarding the business operations, the accounting and tax reporting process all legal 

requirements are dully observed and constant control and monitoring of the activities is being 

performed relative to the decisions taken, the reports submitted and the signals for the 

presence of any irregularities. The Board of directors of the Company exercises control over 

the activities of its subsidiaries in order to reduce the risks and prevent losses. 

 Inflation risk 

 The inflation risk relates to a rise in general price Levels. In recent years, the Bulgarian 

governments have adhered to a strict fiscal policy under the conditions of a Currency Board. 

The tendency is to maintain such a policy in the coming years, especially with a view to 

achieving the goals of Bulgaria's accession to the Euro zone in the shortest possible time. 

The currency board system controls the money supply, but external factors (like rising oil 

prices) maintain an upward pressure on price Levels. The accession of our country to the 

European Union also affects the gradual equalization of domestic prices with those of other 

member countries. In conformity withdata from the NSI (National Institute of Statistics), in 

December of 2021, compared to December 2020, the inflation rate was at 7.8% and for the 

months of January and February of 2022, the trend indicates to a rise of this percentage, 

compared to the corresponding months of 2021. The factors, which have an impact on 

inflation growth, are likely to continue to have a negative impact during the remaining months 

of 2022. 

 Economic Growth 

 The interaction between economic growth and the country's external indebtedness has 

a direct impact on the formation and change in the conditions on the market and the 

investment climate. The official statistical data indicates to a real decline in Gross Domestic 

Product (GDP) and GDP per capita. 
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 In conformity with the preliminary data given by the National Statistical Institute (NSI), 

during 2021, GDP has shown an increase in real terms by 4.7% compared to 2020 and has 

amounted to BGN 132.7 billion at current prices. Converted into Euros, the GDP is 67.84 

billion Euros, which corresponds to 9,851 Euros per capita. 

 Political risk 

 This is the risk arising from the political processes in the country: the risk of political 

destabilization, changes in the principles of governance, legislation and economic policy. The 

political risk is directly dependent on the probability of unfavorable changes in the 

government's long-term policy as a result of which there is a danger of negative changes in 

the business climate. The commitments and requirements, connected with our country's 

membership in the EU and its possible accession to the European Monetary Union (EMU), 

presume improvements in the country's business climate and the facilitation of the 

businesses and entrepreneurship. These are the main reasons not to expect any 

perturbations or significant changes in future state policies. 

 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MANAGEMENT 

 In conformity with the currently valid Bulgarian legislation, the company's management 

is obligated to prepare an individual financial report for the financial year, which must give a 

true and fair picture of the Company's status. Thus, the management has prepared the 

attached Individual Financial Statements in conformity with the International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the European Union. 

 The organs of management have confirmed that they have consistently applied 

adequate accounting policies. 

 The management also declares that it has adhered to the current IFRS rules and that 

the individual financial statements have been prepared on the "going concern" basis. 

 The management is responsible for the correct keeping of the accounting registers, for 

the expedient management of the assets and for taking the necessary measures to avoid 

and detect any cases of embezzlement or other possible irregularities. 

 

Marin Stoev      Zdravko Stoev 

Executive Director     Chairman of the Board of directors 

“LEASING FINANCE”EAD 

city of Sofia,  

April 26, 2022 
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"Crow Bulgaria Audit" EOOD,  
“Shesti Septemvri” Str., № 55,  
Sofia 1142  
T +359 2 44 565 91  
F +359 2 42 660 71 
E   office@crowe.bg 
W  www.crowe.bg 

 

 

REPORT FROM AN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 

 

To the attention of the sole proprietor of "Leasing Finance" EAD 

Address: city of Sofia, P.Code 1407  

Blvd. “Cherni vruh”, № 53 

 

 Report on the audit of the financial statement  

 Opinion 

 We have completed an audited of the financial statements of “Leasing Finance” 

EAD (the “Company”), which contains the statement on the financial status of the 

company as of 31 December 2021 and the statement on its comprehensive income, 

the statement of changes in equity and that of the cash flows for the year ending on 

that date, as well as the explanatory notes to the financial statements containing a 

disclosure of the important accounting policies and other explanatory information 

 In our opinion, the attached financial statements present fairly - in all of its 

material respects - the financial status of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and 

the financial results from its operations and the cash flows for the year ending on that 

date, all in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards reporting 

(IFRS) adopted by the European Union (EU). 

 Grounds for expressing our opinion 

 We have conducted our audit in conformity with the International Auditing 

standards (IAS). According to these standards, our responsibilities have been further 

described in the section to our report entitled “Auditor's responsibilities when auditing 

financial statements”. In conformity with the International Code of Ethics for 

Professional Accountants (including the International independence standards), we 

are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics 

mailto:office@crowe.bg
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Standards Board for Accountants (IEAS Code), with the ethical requirements of the 

Independent Financial Audit Act (IAFA), applicable to our audit of the financial 

statements in Bulgaria and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with the requirements of IAFA and the IEAS Code. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate and is thus able to 

serve as the basis for our opinion. 

 Attention 

 We have to draw your attention to explanatory note 31 "Events after the end of 

the reporting period", attached to the individual financial report, which describes the 

management's assessment of the actual, or the potential, impact of the 

consequences from the military conflict between the Ukraine and Russia on the 

Company. It is disclosed in the individual financial statement, that the impact from the 

events related to the military conflict on the global economic situation may require a 

revision of certain assumptions and judgments, which may lead to significant 

adjustments to the book value of certain assets and liabilities within the next financial 

year.  

 Regarding this issue, our opinion has not changed. 

 Information other than the financial statement and the related auditor's 

report  

 The management bears the responsibility for all other information. This 

information consists of an activity report, prepared by the management in accordance 

with Chapter seven of the Accounting act, but it does not include the financial 

statement and our auditor's report thereon. 

 

 The opinion we have submitted on the financial statement does not extend to 

such other information and we cannot express any certainty regarding the 

conclusions on it, unless it is presented in our report to the extent expressly stated 

therein 

 In connection with the audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to 

analyze the additional information, quoted above, and thereby consider whether that 

other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or, based on 

our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise the information might appear to 

contain substantially important misreporting. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we reach the conclusion that there is, indeed, evidence of material 

misstatement in that other information, we are required to report that fact. 
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 In this respect we have nothing to report. 

 The management's responsibilities for the financial statement 

 The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 

financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and for such 

system of internal control as the management determines is necessary to ensure the 

preparation of financial statements which are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to of fraud or error. 

 

 In connection with the preparation of the financial statement, the management 

is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue functioning as a going 

concern disclosing - where applicable - matters related to the going concern 

assumption and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the 

management has the intention of liquidating the Company or ceasing operations, or 

the management has no other practical alternative, except to do so. 

 

 The individuals, charged with the general management, are responsible for the 

supervision of the Company's financial reporting process. 

 The Auditor's responsibilities for auditing the financial statements 

 Our objective is to obtain a degree of reasonable assurance whether the 

financial statements, taken as a whole, are free from any material misstatements, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to present an auditor's report which includes our 

auditor's opinion. A reasonable degree of assurance is a high degree of assurance, 

but it is not a guarantee that an audit, performed in accordance with IAS, will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements may arise as a result of 

fraud or error and are considered material if they could reasonably be expected, 

individually or in the aggregate, to influence the economic decisions of the users 

made on the basis of that concrete financial report. 

 

 As a part of performing the audit, and in accordance with the IAS, we rely on 

our professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

process. At the same time: 

 

•  we identify and assess the risks of material misstatements in the financial 

reports, whether due to fraud or error; we design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to these risks, and obtain audit evidence sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the risk of a material 
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misstatement resulting from error because fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, input statements misleading the auditor, as well 

as ignoring or circumventing internal control. 

•  we obtain an understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in order 

to develop audit procedures which are appropriate in the particular 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

•  we evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and the related disclosures made by 

the management. 

•  we elaborate our conclusions regarding the appropriateness of the 

management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and - based on 

the audit evidence obtained - we assess whether a material uncertainty exists 

relating to events or conditions which could cast significant doubt on the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we reach the conclusion that a material uncertainty exists, in our auditor's 

report we are required to draw attention to the financial statement disclosures 

related to that uncertainty or, if the disclosures in question are inadequate - to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 

prior to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease functioning as a going concern. 

•  we evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 

statement, including the disclosures and whether the financial statement 

represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner which 

convinces with the fairness of the presentation. 

 

 Among all other matters our communication with the management includes the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and the significant findings during the audit, 

including crucially important deficiencies in the internal control process which we 

have been able to identify during the performance of our audit. 

 

 For "Crow Bulgaria Audit” EOOD  

 Audit firm 

 Gülyai Rahman: signed (ill)             Round SEAL 

 Manager, Registered Auditor responsible for the audit 
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 September 5, 2022 

 city of Sofia 
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 INDIVIDUAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE REPORT  

 For the year ending 31 December 

In BGN Thsd.      Note  2021    2020 

Revenue from interest      1,705   1,643 

Interest expense              (2,873)         (2,386) 

Net interest expense     6        (1,168)            (743) 

Operational lease revenue      1,156   1,574 

Other revenue/(expenses), net   7     492   1,837 

Expenses for assets on operation lease       (88)    (101) 

Result from the operations        3,392    2,567 

 

Administrative costs     8        (3,168)         (2,396) 

Profit before taxation         224                      171 

Revenue tax expense    9  

Annual profit           224                       171 

Total comprehensive revenue for the year      224       171 

……………………………   …………………………….. 

Marin Stoev      Zdravko Stoev 

Executive Director     Chairman of the Board of directors 

…………………………… 

Maya Vluchkova 

Compiler 

Date: April 26, 2022 

 

In conformity with the report submitted by the independent auditor dated: September 05, 

2022. 

For “Crowe Bulgaria Audit” EOOD, Auditing Company 

 

Gülyai Rahman 

Manager, Registered Auditor responsible for the audit 
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The notes on pages 5 to 55 form an integral part of these individual financial statements. 
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INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATUS REPORT 

In BGN Thsd.     Note   December 31,   December 31, 
               2021          2020 
Assets 

Cash           10        1,064           256 

Net investment in financial lease    11        5,448       10,312 

Other financial assets        18      18,224       15,751 

Other receivables from    

related parties         28       -         1,704 

Loans granted         19       10,204       19,574 

Goods           13         4,093         5,060 

Financial assets at fair value  

in the profit and loss        20         3,386         1,322 

Other assets          21         5,833         8,439 

Reverse acquisition assets       12    161            166 

Investments in subsidiaries,  

associates and joint ventures       16          7,481         5,807 

Fixed assets          14        36,886       37,885 

Fixed assets acquisition cost      15        24,578        - 

Investment property        16          3,841        - 

Deferred tax assets         19    496            496 

Total assets           121,695     106,772 

Liabilities 

Obligations to suppliers and  

other obligations    24        23,446      24,192 

Bank and other loans   25        38,400       25,988 

Obligations to related parties  28        39,047       36,014 

Total liabilities           100,893       86,194 

Equity 

Fixed capital     26        39,577       39,577 

Legal reserves              2,671         2,671 

Merger reserve              (512)         (512) 

Uncovered loss         (20,934)    (21,158) 

Total equity             20,802       20,578 

Total liabilities and equity         121,695     106,772 

 

……………………………   …………………………….. 
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Marin Stoev      Zdravko Stoev 

Executive Director     Chairman of the Board of directors 

…………………………… 

Maya Vluchkova 

Compiler 

Date: April 26, 2022 

In conformity with the report of the independent auditor dated: September 05, 2022. 

For “Crowe Bulgaria Audit” EOOD, Auditing Company 

Gülyai Rahman 

Manager, Registered Auditor responsible for the audit 

 

The notes on pages 5 to 55 form an integral part of these individual financial statements. 
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INDIVIDUAL STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

For the year ending 31 December 

In BGN Thsd.     Registered           Legal  Accumulated       Total  
             capital      reserves                  loss      equity 

Balance as of January 1, 2020  28,577   2,159   (21,328)        9,408 

Equity issuance     11,000         -       -       11,000 

Transactions with proprietors  11,000         -      -       11,000 

Profit for the year     -         -            171           171 

Total comprehensive revenue  

for the year      -         -            171           171 

Other changes                    (1)             (1) 

Balance at 31 December 2020 ` 39,577  2,159     (21,158)       20,578 

 

In BGN Thsd.     Registered           Legal  Accumulated        Total  

             capital      reserves                  loss      equity 

Balance at 01 January 2021      39,577                 2,159                 (21,158)          20,578 

Profit for the year            -           -              224               224 

Total comprehensive revenue  

for the year            -           -              224               224 

Balance as of 31 December   39,577   2,159    (20,934)      20,802 

 

……………………………   …………………………….. 

Marin Stoev      Zdravko Stoev 

Executive Director     Chairman of the Board of directors 

…………………………… 

Maya Vlachkova 

Compiler 

Date: April 26, 2022 

In conformity with the report of the independent auditor dated: September 05, 2022. 

For “Crowe Bulgaria Audit” EOOD, Auditing Company 

Gülyai Rahman 

Manager, Registered Auditor responsible for the audit 

 

The notes on pages 5 to 55 form an integral part of these individual financial statements. 
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INDIVIDUAL CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
For the year ending 31 December 

In BGN Thsd.       Note  2021    2020 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Profit for the year          224     171 

Corrections for: 

Decrease in provisions for depreciation 

and others               (2,978)         (1,878) 

Depreciation of fixed assets     14              1,327           1,093 

Revenue from interest       6       (1,705)          (1,643) 

Expense on interest       6              2,873   2,386 

Deferred taxes       19         -          - 

Reduction of financial leasing receivables          10,935   5,905 

Decrease in seized assets              -     (132) 

Increase in receivables from customers and others          -           - 

Increase in other assets             (3,895)          (5,444) 

Repo deals               (2,211)         52 

Liabilities to shareholders              -         (11,000) 

Financial assets for trading - shares        180       127 

Decrease/(Increase) in other receivables and  

other financial assets        6,004        (13,888) 

(Decrease)/Increase in other liabilities     3,745    4,121 

Interest received                  4,660    1,643 

Net cash flow from operating activities           19,159        (18,487) 

Cash flows from investment activities 

Sale/(Acquisition) of fixed assets, net          (29,150)     (518) 

(Increase)/Decrease in long-term  

investments in enterprises               (1,674)     (350) 

Net cash flow for investment activities          (30,824)     (868) 

Cash flow from financial activities 

Receipt/(Repayment) of credits and loans    14,114   20,135 

Interest paid on credits and loans      (1,641)   (1,391) 

Net cash flow from financial activities     12,473   18,744 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents          808     (611) 

Cash and cash equivalents as of January 1,          256       867 

Cash and cash equivalents    10        1,064       256 

as of 31 December   

……………………………   …………………………….. 
Marin Stoev      Zdravko Stoev 
Executive Director     Chairman of the Board of directors 

…………………………… 
Maya Vlachkova 
Compiler 
Date: April 26, 2022 

In conformity with the report of the independent auditor dated: September 05, 2022. 
For “Crowe Bulgaria Audit” EOOD, Auditing Company 
Gülyai Rahman 
Manager, Registered Auditor responsible for the audit 
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The notes on pages 5 to 55 form an integral part of these individual financial statements. 

 

 1. Status and subject of activity 

 “Leasing Finance” EAD (the Company) is a company with registered office in the 

Republic of Bulgaria. The company was registered in accordance with the commercial 

legislation of the country on December 27, 2004 in company file No. 13716/2004 with the 

initial name “Piraeus Leasing Bulgaria” AD. On July 2, 2012, “Piraeus Auto Leasing Bulgaria” 

EAD and “Piraeus Best Leasing” EAD joined the Company. On August 3, 2016, the company 

was renamed to “Leasing Finance” EAD and the change was entered in the Commercial 

register. 

 The address of the Company's management is: district of Sofia, Sofia city, rgn. 

“Lozenets”, Blvd. “Cherni Vruh” 53. The subject matter of its activity is: financial leasing, 

issuance and administering other means of payment (travelers cheques and letters of credit, 

guarantee transactions, acquisition of credit claims and other forms of financing (factoring, 

forfeiting, etc.), acquisition of securities and shares for investment purposes in the 

company`s own name and expense, including in the case of execution in relation to its 

secured or unsecured receivables and taking other appropriate actions to protect the value of 

its investments. In 2021, the Company's activities include financial and operational leasing. 

 The company is registered as a financial institution in conformity with the provisions of 

Art. 3 “a” of the Credit institutions act and is entered in the BNB's register of financial 

institutions under the registration number BGR00181, on the grounds of BNB order No. BNB-

61708/03.07.2015 (previously under Order № РД 22-0767/31.03.2010). 

 The company is not a public entity within the meaning of the ZPPCK (Law on the public 

offering of securities, Bul.). 

 As of December 31, 2021 the number of personnel operating under employment 

contract amounts to 11 individuals (11 employees on December 31, 2020). 

 2. Basis for the preparation of the individual financial report 

 The individual financial statement has been prepared in conformity with the 

requirements of the Bulgarian accounting legislation in the national currency – the Bulgarian 

Lev. Since January 1, 1999, the Bulgarian Lev is at a fixed exchange rate to the Euro: 

1.95583 Leva for 1 Euro. The accuracy of the sums, presented in the individual financial 

statement, is in thousands of Bulgarian Levs. The present individual financial statement has 

been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the International Financial Reporting 
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Standards (IFRS), adopted by the Commission of the European Union. The individual 

financial report has also been prepared in conformity with the requirements of  the 

International Financial Reporting Standards published by the International Accounting 

Standards Board. All International Financial Reporting Standards are published by the 

International Accounting Standards Board and are in effect during the period of preparation 

of the present financial statements. They have been adopted by the European Union through 

an approval procedure established by the European Commission. The company also 

prepares consolidated annual financial statements in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS), developed and published by the International Accounting 

Standards Board (IASB) and approved by the European Union. 

 The present financial statement submitted by the Company is individual, as the 

Company is exempted from preparing and submitting a consolidated financial statement on 

the basis of § 4 of the IFRS 10. The present individual financial statement will be included in 

the consolidated financial statement as of December 31, 2021 of “Finance Security Group” 

AD – the sole proprietor of “Finance Info Assistance” EOODq which is the parent company of 

“Leasing Finance” EAD. The “Finance Security Group” AD publishes its consolidated 

financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2021 not later than April 30, 2022. 

 The financial statements have been prepared on a “going concern” basis, which 

assumes that the Company will continue its operations in the foreseeable future. 

 The Board of directors' assessment of the applicability of the going concern principle 

covers a period of 12 months from the date of issuance of the report. Based on this 

assessment, the management believes that there are no factors and/or events indicating 

doubts regarding the application of this principle as a basis for preparing the individual 

financial statements. The management's intentions regarding the future existence of the 

Company are that it will continue to carry out all of its current activities. 

 The management has no plans or intentions envisaging a significant limitation of the 

scale of the Company's activities and/or any transformations in the foreseeable future 

covering a period of at least one year. 

 3. Changes in the accounting policy 

 (a) New standards in effect as of January 1, 2021. 

 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

 New and amended standards and interpretations 
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 The Company's accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the previous 

reporting period. 

 The following amendments to existing standards issued by the International Accounting 

Standards Board and adopted for application by the EU are effective from January 1, 2021:  

 Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after January 1, 2021, as adopted by the EU).  

 The purpose of the amendments to IFRS 4 is to address the temporary accounting 

effects of the different effective dates of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the forthcoming 

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts. In particular, the amendments to IFRS 4 extend until 2023 the 

temporary exemption from IFRS 9 to align the effective date of IFRS 9 with the new IFRS 17. 

The amendment also introduces a temporary exemption from specific requirements of IAS 28 

Investments in associates and joint ventures in respect of applying a single policy for entities 

using the equity method under IAS 28. Such entities for annual periods beginning before 

January 1, 2023 are permitted, but not required, to retain the relevant accounting policy 

applied by the associate or joint venture when using the equity method. This standard is not 

applicable to the Company's operations and therefore management has not evaluated its 

application.  

 Amendments to IFRS 9 „Financial Instruments“, IAS 39 „Financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Disclosure“, IFRS 7 „Financial Instruments: Disclosures“, IFRS 4 

„Insurance Contracts“ and IFRS 16 „Leases“ – related to Phase 2 of the base rate 

reform (effective for annual periods beginning on 01.01.2021, adopted by the EU) 

 The purpose of the changes is to take into account the financial reporting implications 

of effectively replacing existing base rates with alternative (risk-free) base rates. The 

changes to the standards associated with Phase 2 of the base rate reform primarily provide 

two practical expedients: (a) in determining and measuring changes in the contractual cash 

flows of financial assets and liabilities and lease liabilities, by accounting for changes in the 

base rates by updating the effective interest rate; and (b) in accounting for hedging 

relationships, by permitting a change (revision) in the designation of the hedging relationship 

and the measurement of the hedged item on a cash flow basis because of and as a result of 

The amendments shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.  

 

 (b) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and 

which have never been applied by the Company 

 The following is a brief summary of the published standards that are not yet effective or 

have not been early adopted by the Company at the date of these financial statements.  

Disclosure is provided on how disclosures, financial position and results of operations can 
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reasonably be expected to be affected when the Company first adopts these standards. This 

is expected to occur when they become effective: 

 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts – (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

January 1, 2021 (with an option to defer to 2023) not adopted by the EU); In May 2017, 

the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting 

standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and 

disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4), which 

was published in 2005 IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e. life, general 

insurance, direct insurance and reinsurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue 

them, and to certain guarantees and financial instruments with additional, non-guaranteed 

income (discretionary participation). A small number of exemptions from coverage will apply. 

The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts 

that is more useful and consistent for insurers. It is not applicable to the Company's 

operations and therefore management has not evaluated its application.  

 Amendments to IFRS 10 „Consolidated Financial Statements“ and IAS 28 

„Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures“ (with a delayed effective date of 

adoption to be determined by the IASB) – on sales or in-kind transfers of assets between an 

investor and its associates or joint ventures (with a delayed effective date of adoption to be 

determined by the IASB); These amendments address the accounting treatment of sales or 

acquisitions of assets between an investor and its associates or joint ventures. They confirm 

that the accounting treatment depends on whether or not the assets sold or the non-

monetary assets contributed constitute, in substance, a „business“ within the meaning of 

IFRS 3. If those assets in the aggregate do not meet the definition of a „business“, the 

investor recognises a gain or loss up to the percentage corresponding to the interest of the 

other unrelated investors in the associate or joint venture. When assets are sold or non-

monetary assets that - in the aggregate are a 'business' – are disposed of, the investor 

recognises the full gain or loss on the transaction. These changes will be applied 

prospectively. The IASB has deferred the effective date of application of these changes 

indefinitely. Management is in the process of researching, analyzing and evaluating the 

effects of the changes that would impact accounting policies and the classification and 

presentation of the Company's assets and liabilities. 

 Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - (effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, not adopted by the EU); The amendments 

to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are classified as current or 

non-current depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. The 

classification is not affected by the entity's expectations or events after the reporting date 

(e.g. breach of agreement). The amendments also clarify what is meant when IAS 1 refers to 

'settling' a liability. The amendments may affect the classification of liabilities, particularly for 

entities that have previously considered management's intentions in determining 

classification, and for some liabilities that may be converted to equity. Changes should be 

applied retrospectively in accordance with the normal requirements in IAS 8 Accounting 

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. 

 Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment – (effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022, not adopted by the EU); The amendment 

to the standard prohibits an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant 

and equipment any revenue derived from the sale of manufactured items while the entity is 
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preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity shall recognise those sales 

proceeds for such items and the related costs in profit or loss for the period in accordance 

with the rules of other applicable standards. It also clarifies that an entity „tests whether the 

asset functions properly“ when assessing the technical and physical characteristics of the 

asset. The financial performance of the asset is not relevant to that assessment. Entities 

shall disclose separately the amounts of revenue and expenses associated with 

manufactured items that are not the result of the entity's ordinary activities. The amendments 

shall be applied retrospectively, but only to property, plant and equipment that is brought to 

the location and condition necessary for its operation on or after the beginning of the earliest 

period presented in the financial statements when the entity first applies the amendment. 

 Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations – (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after January 1, 2022, not adopted by the EU); Minor amendments have 

been made to IFRS 3 Business Combinations to update references to the Conceptual 

Framework for Financial Reporting and to add an exception for the recognition of liabilities 

and contingent liabilities within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets and IFRIC Interpretation 21 – „Taxation. The amendments also confirm 

that contingent assets should not be recognised at the acquisition date. The amendments 

are applied prospectively. Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets – (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022, not 

adopted by the EU). The amendment to IAS 37 clarifies that direct costs of performing a 

contract include both incremental costs of performing the contract and allocations of other 

costs directly related to the performance of contracts. Before recognising a separate 

provision for an onerous contract, an entity shall recognise any impairment loss incurred on 

assets used in the performance of the contract. The amendments apply to amendments to 

contracts for which the entity has not yet met all of its obligations at the beginning of the 

annual period in which it first applies them.  

 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 (effective for annual periods beginning on 

or after January 1, 2022, not adopted by the EU). These improvements result in partial 

changes to the following standards as follows:  

• IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards – permits entities 

that have measured their assets and liabilities at carrying amounts recorded in the books of 

their parent to also measure any cumulative translation differences in a foreign currency 

using the amounts reported by the parent. This amendment will also apply to associates and 

joint ventures that have taken the same IFRS 1 exemption. An entity shall apply this 

amendment for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. Earlier 

application is permitted;   

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – clarifies which taxes should be included in the 10% test for 

derecognition of financial liabilities. Under the changes, in determining those fees, an entity 

includes only those paid or received between a borrower and a lender, including fees paid or 

received by the borrower and the lender on behalf of the other. An entity shall apply the 

changes to financial liabilities that change at or after the beginning of the annual reporting 

period in which the entity initially applies them;  

• IFRS 16 Leases – amending Illustrative Example 13 to remove the illustration of lessor 

payments related to leasehold improvements to remove any confusion about the treatment of 
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lease incentives. The amendment relates to an illustrative example that accompanies the 

standard and is not part of the standard, so no effective date is specified;  

• IAS 41 Agriculture – removing the requirement for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation 

when measuring the fair value of biological assets and agricultural produce under IAS 41. 

This amendment is intended to align with the requirement in the standard to discount cash 

flows on an after-tax basis.  

• Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 

2: Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective for annual periods beginning January 1, 2023, 

not adopted by the EC). 

• Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

(effective for annual periods beginning January 1, 2023, not adopted by the EC). 

• Proposed amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease discounts in the context of COVID-19 

after 30 June 2021 (not adopted by the EC). 

Management is in the process of studying, analyzing and evaluating the effects of the 

changes made to the above standards, which are not yet effective, to what extent they will 

have an impact on accounting policies and on the values and classifications of the 

Company's assets, liabilities, operations and results in future reporting periods. 

 4. Significant accounting policies 

 The significant accounting policies, shown below, have been applied consistently 

during all of the presented periods. 

 (a)  General provisions 

 The most significant accounting policies, applied in the preparation of the present 

individual financial report, are presented below. 

 The financial report has been prepared in compliance with the principles for evaluating 

all types of assets, liabilities, revenue and expense in conformity with the IFRS. The 

evaluation bases are disclosed in detail later in the accounting policy to the individual 

financial statement. 

 It should here be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions were used in the 

preparation of the present individual financial statement. Although they are based on 

information provided to management as of the date of preparation of the financial reports, the 

actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions made. 

 Presentation of the financial report 

 The present individual financial report is presented in accordance with IAS 1 

"Presentation of financial reports". 

 The company presents the on the comprehensive revenue in a single statement. 
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 The individual report on the financial status presents two comparative periods during 

which the company has applied the accounting policy retrospectively, recalculating the items 

in the financial report or reclassifying them in the financial statement which exerts a material 

effect on the information in the individual report on the financial status at the beginning of the 

previous period. 

 (b)  Investments in associated companies and joint ventures 

 Subsidiary enterprises are companies which operate under the control of the Company. 

Control exists when the Company is exposed, or has rights to the variable returns from its 

interest in the investee and has the ability to influence these returns through its power of 

control over the investee. In the individual financial report of the Company, investments in 

subsidiaries are reported at their actual cost. 

 The Company recognizes a dividend from a subsidiary in the profit or loss of its 

separate financial reports when its right to receive the dividend is legally confirmed. 

 (c) Investments in associated and joint ventures 

 A joint venture is a contractual arrangement according to which the Company, and 

other independent parties, engage in a business which is subject to a joint control and the 

parties, holding the control over the enterprise, are entitled to its net assets. Investments in 

joint ventures are accounted for at their cost. 

 Associated companies are the enterprises over which the Company is able to exercise 

significant influence, but which are neither subsidiaries nor jointly controlled enterprises. 

Investments in associates are accounted for at their acquisition cost  

 The Company recognizes dividends from a jointly controlled entity in the profit or loss 

elements of its individual financial reports upon establishing its right to receive the respective 

dividend. 

 (d) Transactions in a foreign currency  

 Transactions in foreign currencies are reported in the currency the Company's operates 

with, at the official exchange rate on the date of the transaction (the announced fixing of the 

Bulgarian National Bank). The profit and loss from the exchange differences which arise in 

the settlement of these transactions and the revaluation of cash positions in foreign currency 

at the end of the reporting period are reported as profit or loss. 

 Non-monetary positions, evaluated at their historical price in a foreign currency, are 

reported at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction (not revalued). Non-monetary 

items, measured at their fair value in a foreign currency, are reported at the exchange rate on 

the date on which their fair value is determined. 

 The Bulgarian Lev is fixed to the Euro at a rate of 1 EUR = 1.95583 BGN. 
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 (e) Revenue 

 The company generates its revenue mainly from investments in financial and 

operational leases (Clarification "m"), revenues from interest (Clarification "e"), revenue from 

taxes/fees and others. 

 To determine whether and how to report revenue, the Company uses the following 5 

stages: 

1. Identification of the contract with a customer 

2.  Identification of performance obligations 

3. Determining the transaction price 

4.  Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations 

5.  Revenue recognition when the performance obligations are satisfied. 

 Revenue is reported either at a point in time or over time when, or until, the Company 

satisfies its performance obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its 

customers. 

 The company recognizes as contractual obligations the remuneration received in 

respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and presents them as other obligations in the 

statement of its financial status. Similarly, if the Company satisfies a performance obligation 

before receiving the consideration, in the statement of financial status it recognizes either a 

contract asset or a receivable, depending on whether something - other than a specified time 

- is required to receive the consideration. 

 Sale of foreclosed assets 

 The sale of goods includes the sale of seized assets. Revenue is reported when the 

Company has transferred control over the delivered goods to the buyer. Control is deemed to 

pass to the buyer when the customer has accepted the goods without any objections. 

 (f) Revenue from interest and dividends  

 Revenue from interest is related to financial leasing and loan agreements. They are 

currently reported by using the “effective interest” method. 

 The effective interest rate is the rate which accurately discounts the expected future 

cash payments and receipts over the life of the financial asset or liability to the carrying 

amount of the asset or liability. The effective interest rate is determined upon the initial 

recognition of the financial asset or liability and is not subsequently adjusted. 

 The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all commission fees received or 

paid, the transaction costs and discounts or premiums that are an integral part of the 
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effective interest rate. Transaction costs are intrinsic costs, directly related to the acquisition, 

issuance or the write-off of a financial asset or liability. 

 The revenues from interest and expenses presented in the comprehensive revenue 

report include interest reported on the basis of the effective interest rate on financial assets 

and liabilities reported at their depreciated cost. 

 Unearned finance revenue (interest) represents the difference between the gross and 

net investment in the contract of lease, where the gross investment in the lease is the sum of 

the minimal lease payments and the non-guaranteed residual value charged to the lessor. 

The revenue from interest accrued from leasing operations (financial revenue) is allocated 

over the term of the lease agreement and is reported on the basis of a constant periodic rate 

of return on the lessor's net investment. 

 Dividend revenue is reported when the right to receive payment comes into force.  

 (g) Operating expenses 

 Operating costs are reported in profit or loss when the services are being used or on 

the date they are incurred. 

 The company reports two types of costs related to the performance of contracts for the 

supply of services/goods/with customers: costs of concluding/realizing the contract and the 

costs of the contract`s performance. When the costs do not meet the conditions for deferral 

in conformity with the requirements of IFRS 15, they are reported as current at the time of 

their occurrence: for example, when they are not expected to be reimbursed or the period of 

their deferral is not longer than one year. 

 The following operating expenses are always reflected as a current expense at the time 

of their occurrence: 

-  General and administrative expenses (unless they are at the customer's expense); 

-  Expenses for scrapping material reserves; 

-  Costs related to the fulfillment of the obligation; 

-  Costs for which the enterprise cannot determine whether they are related to a 

satisfied or unsatisfied performance obligation. 

 (h) Expenses on interest and loan-related costs 

 Expenses on interest are reported on an ongoing basis using the effective interest 

method. 
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 The effective interest rate accurately discounts the expected future cash payments and 

receipts over the life of the financial asset or liability to the carrying amount of the asset or 

liability. The effective interest rate is determined upon the initial recognition of the financial 

asset or liability and cannot be subsequently adjusted. 

 The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all commission fees received or 

paid, transaction costs and discounts or premiums that are an integral part of the effective 

interest rate. Transaction costs are intrinsic costs, directly related to the acquisition, issuance 

or write-off of a financial asset or liability. 

 Revenue from interest and expenses, presented in the comprehensive revenue report, 

include interest reported on the basis of an effective interest rate on the financial assets and 

liabilities reported at their depreciated cost. 

 Borrowing expenses mainly represent interest on the company's loans. All borrowing 

costs, directly attributable to the purchase, construction or production of a qualifying asset 

are capitalized over the period in which the asset is expected to be completed and ready for 

use or sale. The remaining borrowing costs should be reported as an expense for the period 

in which they arise in the individual comprehensive revenue report in the line named " 

Expenses on interest ". 

 (i) Goods 

 The goods represent assets acquired under leasing contracts that have not yet been 

handed over to the customer for use or assets returned by non-regular payers and goods. 

They are accounted for at the lower of their acquisition cost and the net realizable value.  

 The goods, related to the leasing activity, are valued at the lower of the current book 

value of the net minimal lease payments at the date of seizure of the asset and the net 

realizable value of the asset. 

 Assets, accounted for as inventories, are subject to a periodic review for depreciation 

which is usually done at the end of the year. 

 The Company determines the cost of the inventories by using the method of “specific 

identification of the costs”. When selling inventories, their book value is reported as an 

expense during the period in which the corresponding revenue is reported. 

 (j) Intangible assets 

 The intangible assets which are classified as “fixed assets” include software and 

licenses. They are accounted for at acquisition cost, including all duties paid, non-refundable 
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taxes and direct costs incurred in connection with preparing the asset for use, where 

capitalized costs are depreciated on a linearbasis over the estimated useful life of the assets, 

as this is considered to be limited in time. 

 Subsequent evaluation is carried out at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation 

and depreciation losses. The depreciations incurred are are reported as expenses and 

presented in the individual comprehensive revenue report for the relevant time period 

 The subsequent costs arising in relation to the intangible assets, after their initial 

recognition, are reported in the separate statement of comprehensive revenue in the period 

in which they occur, unless /thanks to them/ the asset can generate more than the originally 

anticipated future economic benefits and when these costs can be reliably measured and 

assigned to the asset in question. If these conditions are met, the expenses are added to the 

cost of the asset. 

 The residual value and useful life of the intangible assets are assessed by the 

company`s management at each reporting date. 

 Depreciation is calculated using the linear method over the estimated useful lives of 

individual assets as follows: 

 Software and licenses 

 - Software and licenses: 2 to 5 years 

 Depreciation expense is included in the individual statement of comprehensive revenue 

on line “Depreciation expense. 

 The chosen materiality threshold for the Company's intangible assets is BGN 700. 

 (k) Property, plant and equipment 

 Property, plant, and equipment are classified as Fixed /long term/ assets and are 

initially valued at their cost, which includes the cost of acquisition and all the direct costs of 

bringing the asset into a good operational condition. 

 The subsequent evaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out at 

acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and depreciation losses. The depreciations 

are reported as an expense and are included in the individual statement of comprehensive  

revenue for the relevant accounting period. 
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 Subsequent costs associated with a particular asset of property, plant and equipment 

are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that the Company will have 

economic benefits in excess of the originally estimated effectiveness of the existing asset. All 

other subsequent costs are reported as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 The residual value and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are evaluated by 

the management on each reporting date. 

 Property, plant and equipment acquired under lease agreements are depreciated on 

the basis of the expected useful life, determined by comparison with similar company owned 

assets of the Company, or on the basis of the lease agreement, if its term is shorter. 

 Assets which – for accounting purposes – should not be reported by the company as 

depreciable are: 

•  Fully depreciated assets to their residual value. 

•  Assets in the process of being acquired or liquidated. 

•  Assets not used in the company's activities, including newly acquired assets during 

the period prior to their launching into exploitation, certain practical or technological 

requirements have to be fulfilled.  

 The depreciation of depreciable assets is determined by means of two groups of 

methods – linear and non-linear methods. Characteristic feature of the linear method is that 

depreciation is allocated in proportion to the periods that cover the estimated useful life of the 

depreciable asset. A depreciation rate of 2% is assumed for assets retired over a period of 

time (aircraft gliders).  

 Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment is calculated using the linear method 

over the estimated useful lives of the individual groups of assets as follows: 

Vehicles:      6 – 7 years 

Aircraft:         25 – 50 years 

Computers:     2 – 4 years 

Other equipment:    5 – 7 years 

 

 Aircraft engines are depreciated based on hours flown. 

 

 (m) Investment property 
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 Investment properties are initially measured at cost, which includes the purchase price 

and any costs that are directly attributable to the investment property, such as legal fees, 

property transfer taxes and other transaction costs.  

 The Company accounts for land and/or buildings held for rental income and/or capital 

appreciation as investment property under the fair value model. 

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, which includes the purchase price and 

any costs that are directly attributable to the investment property, such as legal fees, property 

transfer taxes and other transaction costs. 

 Investment properties are revalued annually and included in the statement of financial 

position at their market values. These are determined by independent valuers with 

professional qualifications and significant professional experience depending on the nature 

and location of the investment properties, based on evidence of market conditions.  

 Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the sale of an investment 

property is recognised immediately in profit or loss under „Other income/(expense), net“ in 

the line „Subsequent valuations, net“. 

 (n) Depreciation tests on investments in subsidiaries, intangible assets and 

property, plant, equipment and goods 

 When calculating the amount of the depreciation, the Company defines the smallest 

distinguishable group of assets for which separate cash flows can be determined (cash flow 

generating unit). As a result, some of the assets are subject to a depreciation test on an 

individual basis and others on the basis of a cash-generating unit. 

 All assets and cash-generating units are tested for depreciation at least once annually. 

All other separate assets or cash-generating units are tested for depreciation when events, 

or a change in circumstances, indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

 An depreciation loss is reported as the amount by which the carrying value of an asset 

or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the fair value 

less the costs of selling an asset and its value when in use. To determine the value in use, 

the Company's management calculates the expected future cash flows for each cash-

generating unit and determines the appropriate discount factor to calculate the present value 

of these cash flows. The data, used in the depreciation testing, is based on the Company's 

latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to eliminate the effect of future 

reorganizations and significant asset improvements. Discount factors are determined for 

each individual cash-generating unit and reflect their respective risk profile as assessed by 

the Company's management. 
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 Depreciation losses of a cash-generating units are stated as a reduction of the carrying 

amount of the assets of that unit. For all of the Company's assets, the management 

subsequently assesses whether there are indications that a depreciation loss, reported in 

previous years, may no longer exist or may have been reduced. A depreciation reported in a 

previous period is reversed if the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit exceeds its 

carrying amount. 

 (o)  Leasing 

 The company as lessee 

 For each new concluded contract, the Company assesses whether it is a lease or 

contains a lease. A lease is defined as “a contract or part of a contract that grants the right to 

use an asset (the basic asset) for a specified period of time in exchange for consideration”. 

To apply this definition, the Company has to make three basic judgments: 

•  Whether the contract contains an identifiable asset that is either expressly stated in 

the contract or implied by default at the time the asset is made available for use 

•  The Company has the right to receive substantially all economic benefits from the 

use of the asset throughout the period of use, within the defined scope of its right to 

use the asset under the contract 

•  The Company has the right to control the use of the identified asset throughout the 

period of use. 

 The company assesses whether it has the right to control "how and for what purpose" 

the asset will be used throughout the period of use. 

 Evaluation and recognition of a lease by the company as a lessee 

 On the effective date of the lease, the Company recognizes the right-of-use asset and 

the lease liability in the individual statement of its financial status. The right-of-use asset is 

valued at its acquisition cost, which consists of the amount of the initial valuation of the lease 

liability, the initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of the costs that the 

lessee will incur to dismantle and relocate the basic asset at the end of the lease and any 

lease payments made prior to the lease commencement date (minus lease incentives 

received). 

 The Company depreciates the right-of-use asset using the linear method from the 

lease inception date to the earlier of the end of the asset's useful life or the expiration of the 

lease term. The Company also reviews the right-of-use assets for depreciation when such 

indicators exist. 
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 On the effective date of the lease, the Company measures the lease liability at the 

present value of the lease payments outstanding on that date, discounted at the lease 

interest rate, if that rate can be directly determined, or the Company's differential interest 

rate.  

 The lease payments, included in the measurement of the lease liability, consist of fixed 

payments (including essentially fixed), variable payments based on an index or percentage, 

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees and 

payments arising from options if it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise those 

options. 

 After the starting date, the lease liability is reduced by the amount of payments made 

and increased by the amount of interest. The lease liability is revalued to reflect revaluations 

or lease amendments or to reflect adjusted, substantially fixed, lease payments. 

 When the lease liability is revalued, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the 

right-of-use asset or reported in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset 

has already been reduced to zero. 

 The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value 

assets using the practical relief provided in the standard. Instead of recognizing right-of-use 

assets and lease liabilities, the payments related to them are reported as expense in the 

profit or loss on a linear basis over the term of the lease. 

 In the individual report on its financial status, the right-of-use assets are included in 

"Fixed assets" and the lease obligations are included in "Liabilities to suppliers and other 

payables". 

 The company as the lessor 

 As the lessor, the Company classifies its lease contracts as operational or financial 

leasing. 

 A lease is classified as a financial leasing if it transfers substantially all the risks and 

rewards from the proprietorship of the basic asset and as an operational lease if it does not 

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards from the proprietorship to the basic asset.  

 The assets under operational leases are reflected in the Company's individual 

statement on its financial status and are depreciated in accordance with the depreciation 

policy adopted in relation to similar assets of the Company and the requirements of IAS 16 

"Property, plant and equipment" or IAS 38 "Intangible assets". 
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 The company realizes revenues from leasing under operational lease contracts for its 

investment properties. Rental revenue is reported on a linear basis over the term of the 

lease. 

 Assets, leased under financial leases, are reflected in the Company's individual 

statement of its financial status as a receivable equal to the net investment in the lease. The 

revenue from the sale of the assets is included in the individual statement of comprehensive 

revenue for the relevant period. The recognition of financial revenue is based on a model 

reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the residual net investment. 

 The Company's leasing activity is related to the leasing of means of transport, industrial 

equipment, real estate, etc., mainly under financial leasing contracts. A financial leasing is an 

agreement under which the lessor grants the lessee the right to use a specified asset for an 

agreed term against consideration. A leasing contract is considered financial when the lessor 

transfers to the lessee all significant risks and benefits associated with the ownership of the 

asset. 

 The typical indicators which the Company considers when determining whether all 

significant risks and rewards have been transferred include: the present value of the minimal 

lease payments compared to the fair value of the leased asset at the beginning of the lease; 

the term of the lease in comparison with the economic life of the leased asset as well as 

whether the lessee will acquire proprietorship of the leased asset at the end of the term of 

the financial leasing. All other leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards related to the  proprietorship of the asset are classified as operational leases. 

 Given the nature of the Company's activity, receivables under financial leasing 

contracts and operational lease contracts are presented together in the item "Net investment 

in financial leasing" in the individual statement of its financial status. 

 Minimal lease payments 

 Minimal lease payments are the payments that the lessee will make, or may be 

required to make, during the term of the lease. From the Company's point of view, such lease 

payments also include the residual value of the asset guaranteed by a third party unrelated 

to the Company, provided that this party is financially capable of fulfilling its commitment 

under the guarantee or repurchase agreement. In the minimal lease payments, the Company 

also includes the price of any option the lessee possesses with which to purchase the asset, 

where at the start of the lease it is largely certain that the option will be exercised. The 

minimal lease payments do not include sums under conditional rents, as well as service 

costs and taxes, which are paid by the Company and subsequently re-invoiced to the lessee. 
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 Start of lease agreement and start of the leasing term 

 A distinction is made between the beginning of the lease contract and the beginning of 

the term of the leasing. The beginning of the lease agreement is the earlier of the two dates - 

of the lease agreement or of the commitment of the parties to the basic terms of the lease 

agreement. As of this date: 

-  the lease is classified as a financial or operational lease; and 

-  in the case of a financial leasing, the amounts to be reported at the beginning of the 

lease term have to be determined. 

 The beginning of the term of the lease agreement is the date from which the lessee can 

exercise its right to use the leased asset. This is also the date on which the Company initially 

recognizes the receivable under the lease. 

 Initial and subsequent assessment 

 The Company initially recognizes a financial leasing receivable equal to its net 

investment, which includes the present value of the minimal lease payments and any 

unguaranteed residual value to the Company. The present value is calculated by discounting 

the minimal lease payments, due at the interest rate inherent in the lease. Initial direct costs 

are included in the calculation of the receivable under the financial leasing. During the lease 

term, the Company accrues financial revenue (revenue from interest under financial leases) 

on the net investment. 

 Lease payments received are treated as a reduction of the net investment (repayment 

of principal) and financial revenue is reported in a manner which provides a constant rate of 

return on the net investment. Subsequently, the net investment in financial leasing contracts 

is presented net, after deducting individual and portfolio provisions for uncollectibility. The 

determination of depreciation, under a financial leasing, is specified in note " f " below. 

 Depreciation losses from receivables under financial leasing contracts  

 Financial leasing receivables presented in the balance sheet as a net investment in 

financial leasing are subject to impairment for expected credit losses based on the 

Company's policy. The amounts for depreciation losses on lease receivables, which the 

Company sets aside, are calculated based on management's best estimate of the present 

value of the expected cash flows. 

 In estimating these cash flows, the management makes assumptions about the 

debtor's financial condition and the net realizable value of the available collateral. Each 

depreciated financial asset is examined in conformity with its content, after which the 
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Company's management approves the assessment of the collectability of cash flows from the 

financial asset. 

 (p) Financial instruments 

 Acknowledgment and de-registration 

 The financial assets and financial liabilities are reported when the Company becomes a 

party to the contractual terms of the financial instrument. 

 Financial assets are de-registered when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 

the financial asset expire or when the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards 

are transferred. 

 Financial liabilities are written off when the obligation specified in the contract is 

fulfilled, canceled or its term has expired. 

 Classification and initial evaluation of financial assets 

 Initially, the financial assets are reported at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, 

except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and trade receivables which do 

not contain a significant financial component. The initial measurement of financial assets at 

fair value through profit or loss is not adjusted for transaction costs, which are reported as 

current costs. The initial evaluation of trade receivables which do not contain a material 

financial component represents the transaction price conforming with IFRS 15. 

 Depending on the method used for the subsequent reporting, the financial assets are 

classified in one of the following categories: 

•  debt instruments at depreciated value; 

•  financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; 

•  financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue, with or without 

reclassification in profit or loss depending on whether they are debt or equity 

instruments. 

The classification of financial assets is determined based on the following two 

conditions: 

•  the business model of the Company for the management of financial assets; 

•  the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of the financial asset. 

 All revenue and expenses related to the financial assets which are reported in profit 

and loss are included in financial expenses, financial revenue or other financial items, with 

the exception of the depreciation of trade receivables, which is presented on the line "Profit / 

(loss) from depreciation” in the individual statement of comprehensive revenue. 
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 Subsequent evaluation of financial assets 

 Financial assets at depreciation cost 

 The financial assets are measured at their depreciated cost if they meet the following 

criteria and are not designated for measurement at fair value through profit and loss: 

•  the company manages the assets within a business model the purpose of which is 

to hold the financial assets and to collect their contractual cash flows; 

•  in conformity with the contractual conditions of the financial asset, on specific dates 

cash flows occur which are only payments of principal and interest on the 

outstanding amount of the principal. 

 This category includes non-derivative financial assets, such as loans and receivables 

with fixed or determinable payments, which are not quoted in an active market. After initial 

recognition, they are measured at depreciated cost using the effective interest method. 

Discounting is not performed when the effect from it is negligible. The Company classifies 

cash and cash equivalents / cash, trade and other receivables as parts of this specific 

category. 

 Receivables under leasing contracts and other receivables 

 These receivable are sums owed by customers for goods sold or services performed in 

the ordinary course of business. They are usually due for settlement at short notice and are, 

therefore, classified as current. Receivables are initially reported at the amount of the 

unconditional consideration, unless they contain significant financial components. The 

Company holds the receivables for the purpose of collecting the contractual cash flows and 

evaluates them at their depreciated cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is 

not performed when the effect from it is negligible. 

 The Company's management has estimated that the financial assets, representing 

cash in current accounts, financial leasing receivables, judgment and awarded receivables 

and loan receivables, will be held by the Company for the purpose of obtaining the agreed 

cash flows and are expected to result in cash flows representing only payments of principal 

and interest. These financial assets are classified and subsequently measured under IFRS 9 

at their depreciated cost. 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 Financial assets for which the "held to collect contractual cash flows" or "held to collect 

and sell" business model does not apply, as well as financial assets the contractual cash 
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flows of which are not payments of principal and interest only, are reported at fair value 

through profit or loss. 

 Changes in the fair value of assets, in this category, are reflected in profit and loss. The 

fair value of financial assets is determined by quoted prices on an active market or by using 

evaluation techniques in the absence of such an active market. 

 Depreciation of financial assets 

 The depreciation requirements, under IFRS 9, use more forward-looking information to 

recognize the expected credit losses – the so-called “expected credit loss” model. 

 The eligible instruments include loans and other debt financial assets measured at 

depreciated cost - trade receivables, loans granted and net investment in financial leasing. 

The recognition of credit losses is no longer dependent on the occurrence of a credit loss 

event. Instead, the Company considers a broader range of information in assessing the 

credit risk and in estimating the expected credit losses, including past events, current 

conditions, reasonable and supportive forecasts which exert an impact on the expected 

collectability of the instrument's future cash flows. 

 In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction has to be made between: 

•  financial instruments the credit quality of which has not significantly deteriorated 

compared to the time of the initial recognition or which have a low credit risk (Phase 

1), and 

•  financial instruments the credit quality of which has significantly deteriorated 

compared to the time of the initial recognition or the credit risk of which is not low 

(Phase 2), 

• "Phase 3" covers financial assets for which there is objective evidence of 

depreciation as of the reporting date. 

 Receivables from granted loans and other receivables 

 For all other financial assets (assignment receivables, receivables and credits acquired 

with assignments, loans granted, etc.) the Company applies the same depreciation policy as 

described above, based on the "expected credit loss" model. 

 The calculation of the expected credit losses is determined on the basis of the credit 

rating established with the application of the “Altman Z” model, after which the probability-

weighted estimate of credit losses, over the expected term of the financial instruments, is 

performed. In conformity with the status of the contract and the client's overdue period, if the 

obligation is paid within 60 days after the reporting date, no depreciation is charged. 

Receivables, overdue for more than 90 days, are fully depreciated. 
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 When assessing and measuring the expected credit losses of the financial assets, the 

assessment of the collateral, provided in favor of the Company, is also taken into account 

based on the risk of its realization, in conformity with the type of the pledged asset and the 

value of the asset calculated on the basis of its age. 

 Customer arrears, and the likelihood of lawsuits being filed against them, are also 

monitored. 

 Lease receivables 

 The company currently classifies its risk exposures on the basis of the allowed period 

of delay in relation to the agreed payment terms in the lease agreement. In the presence of 

objective data proving signs of deterioration in the debtor's financial status or circumstances 

which have led to losses or may lead to losses from future events, the Company may, at its 

own discretion, classify specific exposures in a higher risk group and charge specific 

depreciations. 

 To assess and measure the expected credit losses from the financial assets, the 

Company's management has adopted the following approaches: 

-  for receivables under leasing contracts - based on customer ratings, which are 

determined every month on the basis of the following scale: 

 

Risk level Rating Type of the lease 
contract 

Status of the  
contract 

Customer 
arrears 

Minimal risk A Financial; operational Active 1 to 30 days 

Low to high risk B Financial; operational Active 30 to 90 days 

Increased risk C Financial; operational  Active over 90 days 

High risk D Financial; operational Inactive - 

 

 In addition to applying the “expected credit loss” model, leasing receivables are 

considered depreciated if there is objective evidence that a loss from depreciation has 

registered. The criteria, used by the Company to determine objective evidence of 

depreciation, include: 

-  financial difficulties of the lessee; 

-  overdue contractual installments on principal or interest; 

-  violation of the terms of the contract; 

-  a probability of the lessee`s bankruptcy. 

 The credit quality of the portfolio of lease receivables which are not overdue for more 

than 90 days are depreciated on a group basis in conformity with the company's internal 
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policy. For this purpose, the statistical probability of a claim passing from the group delaying 

the payment for up to 90 days to the group of over 90 days and the probability of taking legal 

action are taken into account. The coefficients are calculated by observing the deterioration 

of the lease portfolio in the previous years. The leasing contracts of corporate clients with 

exposures exceeding EUR 50,000 are considered individually and are, if necessary, 

depreciated on an individual basis. Receivables under leasing contracts overdue for more 

than 90 days are depreciated individually in conformity with the Company's internal policy. 

 Classification and evaluation of the financial liabilities 

 The Company's financial liabilities include loans received, leasing, commercial and 

other financial obligations. 

 The financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and, where applicable, 

adjusted for transaction costs, unless the Company has designated a financial liability as 

measured at fair value through profit and loss. 

 The financial liabilities are subsequently measured at their depreciated value using the 

effective interest method, with the exception of derivatives and financial liabilities which are 

designated for measurement at fair value through profit or loss (except for derivative financial 

instruments that are designated and effective as a hedge tool). 

 All expenses related to interest and, if applicable, changes in the fair value of the 

instrument which are reported in profit or loss, are included in the financial expenses or 

financial revenues. 

 (p) Taxes 

 Tax expenses on taxes, reported in profit or loss, include the amount of deferred and 

current taxes which are not reported in the other comprehensive revenue or directly in equity. 

 Current tax assets and/or liabilities represent obligations to or receivables from the tax 

authorities relating to current or previous accounting periods which have not been paid on 

the date of the individual financial statement. The current tax is payable on the taxable 

revenue which differs from the profit or loss in the financial statements. The calculation of the 

current tax is based on the tax rates and tax laws in force at the end of the reporting period. 

 Deferred taxes are calculated using the passive method for all temporary differences 

between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and their taxation basis. Deferred 

tax is not provided for on the initial recognition of an asset or liability, unless the relevant 

transaction does not effect the taxation or accounting profit. 
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 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. In their calculation, tax rates are 

used which are expected to be applicable for the period of their realization, provided that they 

have come into force, or are certain to come into force, at the end of the reporting period. 

 Deferred tax liabilities are reported in full. 

 Deferred tax assets are reported only when it is very likely that they will be utilized 

through future taxable revenue. Regarding the management's assessment of the likelihood of 

future taxable revenue against which deferred tax assets can be utilized, see clarification “u”. 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when the Company has the right and 

intention to offset current tax assets or liabilities from the same tax institution. 

 The change in deferred tax assets or liabilities is reported as a component of tax 

revenue or expense in profit or loss, unless they relate to items reported in other 

comprehensive revenue (for instance, revaluation of land) or directly in equity, in which case 

the relevant deferred tax is reported in other comprehensive revenue or equity. 

 (q) Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and current accounts with banks. 

 (r) Equity and reserves 

 The share capital of the Company reflects the nominal value of the issued shares. 

 The Company's reserves include: 

-  legal reserves; 

-  reserves formed by merger during company transformations. 

 Retained earnings/Accumulated loss includes the current financial result and 

accumulated profits and uncovered losses from previous years. 

 (s) Staff income 

 The short-term staff income includes wages, salaries, interim and annual bonuses, 

social security contributions and annual compensable employee leave, which are expected 

to be fully settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. When the Company 

receives the service, it is reported as a personnel expense in profit or loss or capitalized in 

the cost of an asset. Short-term staff income is valued at the undiscounted amount of 

expected settlement costs. 

 The Company has an obligation to pay a retirement income to those of its employees 

who retire in accordance with the requirements of Article 222, § 3 of the Labour Code in the 

Republic of Bulgaria. In accordance with these provisions of the Labour Code, upon 
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termination of the employment contract of an employee who has acquired the right to a 

pension, the employer shall pay him an indemnity equal to two months' gross wages. 

 In the event that the employee has accumulated service of 10 years or more at the 

date of retirement, the compensation shall amount to six monthly gross salaries. As at the 

financial date, the Company has not accrued any provision for retirement in respect of the 

low average age of staff. 

 Termination benefits 

 Termination benefits are reported as an expense when the Company has committed 

clearly, without real possibility of opt-out, to a formal, detailed plan to either terminate 

employment before the normal retirement date or to provide termination benefits as a result 

of an offer, made to encourage voluntary departure. 

 Voluntary termination benefits are reported as an expense if the Company has made a 

formal offer of voluntary termination and it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the 

number of acceptances can be reliably estimated. If benefits are due more than 12 months 

after the end of the reporting period, they are discounted to their present value. 

 Short-term income of employed persons 

 Obligations for short-term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis 

and are reported as expenses when the related services are provided. A liability is reported 

for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the 

Company has a legal or constructive obligation to pay that amount as a result of past 

services rendered by an employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. The 

Company recognizes as a liability the undiscounted amount of estimated paid annual leave 

costs expected to be paid to employees in exchange for their work during the previous 

accounting period. 

 (t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

 Provisions are reported when there is a likelihood that a present obligation related to a 

past event will result in an outflow of resources from the Company and a reliable estimate of 

the amount of the obligation can be made. The timing or amount of the cash outflow may be 

uncertain. A present obligation arises from the existence of a legal or constructive obligation 

as a result of past events. Restructuring provisions are reported only if a detailed formal 

restructuring plan has been developed and implemented or the management has announced 

the main points of the restructuring plan to those who will be effected. Provisions for future 

losses from the activity are not reported. 

 The amount reported as a provision is calculated on the basis of the best estimate of 

the costs necessary to settle the current liability at the end of the reporting period, taking into 
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account the risks and uncertainties associated with the current liability. Where there are a 

number of similar liabilities, the possible need for an outflow to settle the liability is 

determined by considering the group of liabilities as a whole. Provisions are discounted when 

the effect of timing differences in the value of money is significant. 

 Indemnities from third parties, in connection with a given obligation, which the 

Company is certain to receive are reported as a separate asset. This asset may not exceed 

the value of the relevant provision. 

 Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and their value is adjusted 

to reflect the best estimates. 

 In the cases where it is considered unlikely that an outflow of economic resources will 

occur as a result of a current obligation, a liability is not recognized. Contingent liabilities 

should be measured subsequently at the higher of the comparable provision described 

above and the initially reported amount, less accumulated amortization. 

 Probable inflows of economic benefits which do not yet meet the criteria for asset 

recognition are considered contingent assets. They are described together with the 

contingent liabilities of the Company in Note 30. 

 (u) Important estimates made by the management in applying the accounting 

 policies 

 Further below is a description of the important estimates and judgments, made by the 

management, in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies which may exert 

a decisive impact on the submitted individual financial reports. The main sources of 

uncertainty when using such accounting estimates are described in Note " f ". 

 Deferred tax assets 

 The estimate of the probability of a future taxable revenue for the utilization of deferred 

tax assets is based on the last approved budget forecast, adjusted for significant non-taxable 

revenue and expenses and specific limitations on the carry-forward of unused tax losses or 

credits. If a reliable forecast of taxable revenue suggests the probable use of a deferred tax 

asset, especially in cases where the asset can be used without a time limit, then the deferred 

tax asset is reported in full. The recognition of deferred tax assets which are subject to 

certain legal or economic restrictions or uncertainties is assessed by the management on a 

case-by-case basis and the specific facts and circumstances. 

 Debt instruments valued at their depreciated cost 
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 The management's analysis and intentions are confirmed by the business model of 

holding the debt instruments which meet the requirement to receive payments of principal 

and interest only and holding the assets until the collection of the agreed cash flows from the 

bonds, which are classified as rated debt instruments at depreciated value. This decision is 

consistent with the Company's current liquidity and capital. 

 Review of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

 Useful lives of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 

 The financial reporting of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets involves the 

use of estimates of their expected useful lives and residual values, which are based on 

judgments by the Company's management. Information on the useful lives of property, 

machinery, equipment and intangible assets is presented in Note 3 k) and j). 

 In accordance with IAS 8, in the absence of an accounting standard that is specifically 

applicable to a particular transaction, event or condition, management uses its judgement to 

develop and apply accounting policies to enable the financial statements to present fairly the 

financial position, performance and cash flows of the entity. In light of the COVID-19 

pandemic and attempts to contain the spread of the virus, a number of restrictions were 

imposed on the free movement of people (border closures/difficult border crossings, reduced 

flight schedules at all airports and reduced passenger traffic) which directly impacted the 

Company's trading activities. This necessitated the need during the year to review the useful 

lives of the Aircraft category assets used in the Operating Leases business line. 

Management has decided to account for their reduced obsolescence by applying a longer 

depreciation rate. In view of the unusual nature of the Covid-19 event, management believes 

that the application of this accounting policy does not require a retrospective restatement as 

the event was non-corrective and had no impact on the Company's items and operations in 

the prior period. 

 As a result of the revised useful lives of engines and aircraft, the net effect on the 

statement of comprehensive income in the current financial year resulted in a decrease in 

depreciation expenses by BGN 2,369 Thsd. 

 Term of the lease contracts 

 In determining the term of the lease contracts, management considers all facts and 

circumstances which create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option or not to 

exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods following termination options) 

are included in the lease term only if it is reasonably certain that the lease has been 

extended (or has not been terminated). 

 (v) Uncertainty in the accounting estimates 



 

61 

 

 The actual results may differ from the management's assumptions, estimates and 

forecasts and, in rare cases, they may be fully consistent with the previously estimated 

results. 

 In preparing the individual financial report, the management's significant judgments in 

the application of the Company's accounting policies and the main sources of uncertainty of 

the accounting estimates do not differ from those disclosed in the Company's annual 

financial statement as of December 31, 2020. 

 Information about the material assumptions, estimates and forecasts which have the 

most significant impact on the recognition and measurement of the assets, liabilities, revenue 

and expense is presented below. 

 Depreciation of non-financial assets 

 A reported depreciation loss is the sum by which the carrying amount of an asset, or 

cash-generating unit, exceeds its recoverable value, which is the higher of the fair value less 

costs to sell an asset and its value in use. To determine value in use, the Company's 

management calculates the expected future cash flows for each cash-generating unit and 

determines the appropriate discount factor to calculate the present value of those cash flows 

(see clarification "L"). In calculating the expected future cash flows, the management makes 

assumptions about future gross earnings and these assumptions relate to future events and 

circumstances. The actual results may differ and they may require significant adjustments to 

the Company's assets in the next accounting year. 

 In most cases, the determination of the applicable discount factor assesses the 

appropriate adjustments for market risk and risk factors that are specific to individual assets. 

 Goods 

 Goods are valued at the lower of acquisition cost and net realizable value. In 

determining the net realizable value, the management takes into account the most reliable 

information available by the date of the estimate. 

 Useful lives of depreciable assets 

 The management of the company reviews the useful lives of the depreciable assets at 

the end of each reporting period. 

 As of December 31, 2021, the management has determined the useful life of the 

assets, which represents the expected period of use of the assets by the Company. The 

carrying values of the assets are analyzed in note 14. 

 Measurement of the expected credit losses 
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 Credit losses represent the difference between all contractual cash flows, owed to the 

Company, and all of the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. Expected credit 

losses are a probability-weighed estimates of credit losses which require the Company's 

judgment. Expected credit losses are discounted at the original effective interest rate (or at 

the credit-adjusted effective interest rate for the purchased or initially created credit-

depreciated financial assets). 

 Fair value measurement 

 The management of the company uses various techniques to estimate the fair value of 

the financial instruments (in the absence of quoted prices on an active market) and non-

financial assets. In applying such evaluation techniques, the management uses – to the 

maximum extent – the market data and assumptions which the market participants would 

adopt in evaluating an instrument. When there is no applicable market data, the 

management uses its best estimates of the assumptions which the players on the market 

would make. These estimates may differ from the actual prices that would have been 

determined in a fair market transaction between informed and willing parties at the end of the 

reporting period. 

 

 Depreciation of lease receivables 

 Receivables under financial and operational leases, presented in the individual report 

of the company`s financial status as a net investment in financial leases, are subject to 

depreciation for expected credit losses based on the Company's policy. The amounts for 

depreciation losses of lease receivables, which the Company sets aside for specifically 

defined exposures, are calculated on the basis of the Management's best estimates of the 

present value of the expected cash flows. 

 In estimating these cash flows, the management makes assumptions about the 

debtor's financial status and the net realizable value of the available collateral. Each 

depreciated financial asset is examined in conformity with its content, after which the 

Company's management approves the assessment of the collectability of cash flows from the 

given financial asset. 

 The sum of the depreciations is the difference between the present amount and the 

recoverable amount representing the net value of the expected cash flows, including 

amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral discounted at the effective interest rate 

of the leases, except where the contract is already terminated, whereby the discounting is 

done with the average interest rate on the company's liabilities. Depreciations are reviewed 

at each reporting date to reflect the current best estimates. 
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 If a lease, or a loan, is uncollectible it is written off against the corresponding provision 

for depreciation. These leases are written off after the completion of all necessary 

procedures and the determination of the sum of the loss. 

 If, during a subsequent period, the amount of the depreciation loss decreases and this 

decrease can be objectively related to an event which has occurred after reporting the 

depreciation (such as an improved credit rating, early repayment of the lessee's obligations, 

availability of additional collateral), the previously reported depreciation loss is reversed by 

correcting the adjustment account. The recovered sum is reported in the annual result. 

 5. Risks related to the financial instruments 

 The company is exposed to the following risks arising from the use of financial 

instruments: 

•  credit risk; 

• residual value risk; 

•  liquidity risk; 

•  market risk. 

 This clarification presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the 

above mentioned risks, the Company's objectives, the risk measurement and management 

policies and processes and the capital management. Additional quantitative disclosures are 

included in the explanatory notes to these individual financial reports. 

 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 

 The balance sheet values of the company's financial assets and liabilities can be 

presented in the following categories: 

In BGN Thsd.        2021    2020 

Financial assets 

Debt instruments at depreciated cost: 

    Bonds         2,736   2,758 

    Net investment in financial leasing    5,448         10,312 

    Other financial assets            15,488         12,993 

    Other receivables from related parties          -            1,731 

    Loans granted             10,204                19,574 

    Cash         1,064              256 

               34,940         47,624 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: 

    Capital instruments       3,386    1,322 
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         3,386                   1,322 

In BGN Thsd.         2021     2020 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities reported at depreciated cost: 

    Bank and other loans            38,400   25,988 

    Liabilities to related parties           39,047           36,014 

    Payables to suppliers and other liabilities        7,295            7,016 

    Lease related liabilities                 967     1,370 

              85,709  70,388 

 

 See clarification 3 (n) for information on the accounting policy for each category of 

financial instruments. The methods used to estimate the fair values of the financial assets 

and liabilities, accounted for at their fair value, are described in clarification 31. A description 

of the Company's risk management policy and objectives, regarding the financial 

instruments, is presented below. 

 (a) Credit Risk 

 The financial assets which potentially expose the Company to credit risks, are mainly 

the receivables under leasing contracts, assignments and receivables under advanced loans. 

The Company is exposed to a credit risk in the event that customers default on their 

obligations. 

 The Company's borrowers or lessees may be effected by lower liquidity, which in turn 

could affect their ability to repay their debts. Deteriorated operational conditions for 

customers (lessees) may also effect the management's cash flow forecasts and the 

assessment of the depreciation of the financial and non-financial assets. To the extent that 

such information is available, the management has appropriately reflected updated estimates 

of the expected future cash flows in its depreciation estimates. 

 “Leasing Finance” EAD is exposed to a credit risk if a party to a contract becomes 

unable to pay its obligations in full on the due date. Risk management is carried out under 

the control of the Finance and Leasing departments. The exposure to credit risk is managed 

by analyzing the ability of the lessees to service the obligations of interest and principal 

payments and by constant monitoring of the net realizable value of the leased property 

(collateral). The experts at “Leasing Finance” EAD ensure that the net realizable value of the 

leased property is greater than the net receivable from the client at any moment of the lease 

term. 
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 In accordance with the following leasing procedure, there are the following authorized 

Levels for approval of new lease contracts: 

First Level:  up to EUR 150,000 financed amount; 

Second Level:  over EUR 150,000 up to EUR 2,000,000 financed amount; 

Third Level:  over EUR 2,000,000 up to EUR 5,000,000 funded amount. 

 

 In addition to the individual assessment of the credit risk of the exposure to a given 

client, the Management also controls the credit risk arising from the possible deterioration of 

the economic environment, or of a certain sector of the industry, through diversification of the 

portfolio. 

 A concentration of credit risk arises from customers with similar economic features and 

characteristics, for which it is possible that changes in the economy, or in other conditions, 

may simultaneously affect their ability to meet the undertaken obligations. 

 An analysis of the credit risk concentration is shown in the table below: 

In BGN Thsd.            2021        %  2020      % 

Agriculture, hunting, forestry and fishing    47   0.50%      77       0.54% 

Manufacturing industry            304   3.26%          438       3.09% 

Construction              505   5.41%          560      3.95% 

Trade, repair and technical servicing of cars,  

motorcycles, personal items and  

household goods          1,817            19.48%  1,997    14.08% 

Hotels and restaurants        -   -        -         - 

Transport, storage and communications       4,966          53.23% 7,129     50.24% 

Other activities serving society  

and the individual          1,097   11.76%      3,169     22.34% 

Households                     593            6.36%         817       5.76% 

            9,329         100.00%    14,187   100.00% 

 The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the Company's maximum credit 

exposure. 

 As of December 31, 2021, the maximum credit exposure is formed by the following 

financial assets: 

 

In BGN Thsd. Gross 
book 
value 

Assets 
neither 

overdue 
nor 

depreciat

Assets 
overdue 
but not 

depreciat
ed 

Individual
ly 

depreciat
ed assets 

Deprecia-
tion 

Net book 
value 
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ed 

Cash  1,064  1,064  -  -  -  1,064 

Net investment in financial leasing: 

Legal entities  8,736  1,166  155  7,415  (3,606)  5,128 

Individuals  593  248  -  345  (274)  319 

Other 
financial 
assets and 
receivables 
from related 
parties 

31,814 31,814 - - - 31,814 

Total  42,207  34,292  155  7,760  (3,880)  38,325 

 

 As of December 31, 2020, the maximum credit exposure is formed by the following 

financial assets: 

 

In BGN Thsd. Gross 
book 
value 

Assets 
neither 

overdue 
nor 

depreciat
ed 

Assets 
overdue 
but not 

depreciat
ed 

Indivi-
dually 

depreciat
ed assets 

Deprecia-
tion 

Net book 
value 

 

Cash  256  256  -  - -  256 

Net investment in financial leasing: 

Legal entities  13,583  3,002  86  10,495  (3,602)  9,981 

Individuals  577  241  11   325 (273) 304 

Other 
financial 
assets and 
receivables 
from related 
parties 

 

 

 

38,962 

 

 

 

21,374 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

17,587 

 

 

 

(1,905) 

 

 

 

37,056 

Total  53,378  24,873  97  28,407  (5,780)  47,597 

 

 As a consequence from its activity, the Company is exposed to the risk of the residual 

value of the leased assets. In the event of non-payment and seizure of assets under a 

financial leasing or upon expiration of an operational lease, the residual values of the assets 

may not be covered through direct sale or re-leasing. 

 The company manages the risk of insufficient residual value by requiring additional 

collateral from lessees and/or company or personal guarantees. 

 An analysis of the concentration of lease receivables by asset type, as of December 

31, is shown in the table below: 
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In BGN Thsd.   2021  %  2020  % 

Cars and vans  4,128  44.25%  3,950  27.84% 
Trucks  650  6.97%  1,522  10.73% 
Industrial equipment  783  8.39%  1,950  13.74% 
Real estate  property -  -%  -  -% 
Aircraft  3,653  39.16%  6,485  45.71% 
Other  115  1.23% 280  1.98% 
Net investment in financial 
leasing before depreciation  

9,329  100.00%  14,187  100.00% 

Depreciations  (3,880)  - (3,875) - 
 

 b) Liquidity risk 

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulties in servicing its 

financial obligations. The Company's approach to liquidity risk management is to ensure, to 

the greatest extent possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity available to service its 

maturing obligations both under normal and extraordinary conditions, without this leading to 

additional losses or risks to its reputation. 

 Liquidity is monitored on an ongoing basis. Contingency tests are conducted with 

different scenarios covering normal and adverse market conditions. The liquidity policy, and 

its implementation procedures, are approved by the company's management. 

 Maturity analysis of the financial liabilities related to residual contractual cash 

 flows 

 The tables, attached below, present the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's 

financial liabilities based on the earliest possible maturity date. Gross nominal cash flow is 

the agreed undiscounted cash flow from the financial liability or commitment, including 

principal and interest. 

 As of December 31, 2021, the company continues with its efforts to reduce the maturity 

difference between its credit portfolio and the financing from related parties, thereby striving 

to reduce the interest and liquidity risk to which it is exposed. 

 The tables below present an analysis of the Company's assets and liabilities by 

maturity periods based on the agreed maturities from the balance sheet date to the date of 

realization of the asset or the settlement of the liability: 

 

In BGN Thsd.  Up to 1 
month  

1-3  
months  

3-12 
months  

1-5  
years  

Over 5 
years  

Total 

December 31, 2021 
Assets 

Cash  282 - 782 - - 1,064 

Net investment in 
financial leasing - - 2,178 3,270 - 5,448 

Other financial assets  - - 40 18,184 - 18,224 

Other receivables from - - - - - - 
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related parties 
Loans granted  - - 8,847 1,357 - 10,204 

Total Assets  282 - 11,847 22,811 - 34,940 

Liabilities       
Accounts payable and 
other financial 
obligations 

 
3,247 

 
- 

 
4,048 

 
- 

 
- 

 
7,295 

Liabilities to related 
parties - - 14,950 24,097 - 39,047 
Bank and other loans - - 14,482 23,918 - 38,400 

Lease liability 
obligations 38 75 338 516   967 

Total liabilities  3,285 75 33,818 48,531 - 85,709 

Net difference  (3,003) (75) (21,971) (25,720) - (50,769) 

Cumulative difference  (3,164) (3,078) (25,049) (50,769) - - 

 

In BGN Thsd.  Up to 1 
month  

1-3  
months  

3-12 
months  

1-5  
years  

Over 5 
years  

Total 

December 31, 2020 
Assets 

Cash  256 - - - - 256 

Net investment in 
financial leasing 

 

24 

 

33 

 

1,227 

 

9,028 

 

- 

 

10,312 

Other financial assets  - - 661 15,090 - 15,751 

Other receivables from 
related parties 

- - 1,731 - - 1,731 

Loans granted  - - 5,634 13,940 - 19,574 

Total Assets  280 33 9,253 38,058 - 47,624 

Liabilities       
Accounts payable and 
other financial 
obligations 

2,968 - 4,048 - - 7,016 

Liabilities to related 
parties 

- - 8,666 27,348 - 36,014 

Bank and other loans - - 10,633 15,355 - 25,988 

Lease liability 
obligations 

38 75 338 919  1,370 

Total liabilities  3,006 75 23,685 43,633 - 70,388 

Net difference  (2,726) (42) (14,459) (5,564) - (22,791) 

Cumulative difference  (2,726) (2,768) (17,227) (22,791) - - 

       

 (c) Market risk 

 Currency risk 

 “Leasing Finance” EAD carries out its activities in Bulgarian Lev /BGN/ and Euro /€/. 

The management believes that in view of the fixed exchange rate of the Bulgarian Lev to the 

Euro (in force in Bulgaria), the Company is not exposed to adverse consequences from 

changes in the exchange rate. The table below presents the assets and liabilities by their 

book value, grouped by currency: 
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 In BGN Thsd. 

December 31, 2021  BGN  Euro  Total 
Assets    

Cash  274 790 1,064 
Net investment in financial leasing  - 5,448 5,448 
Other financial assets (assignment receivables)  18,224 - 18,224 
Other receivables from related parties  10,204 - 10,204 
Loans granted  3,386 - 3,386 
Financial assets at fair value  32,088 6,238 38,326 

Total assets  274 790 1,064 

 

  In BGN Thsd. 

December 31, 2021  BGN  Euro  Total 
Liabilities    

Liabilities to related parties  15,138 23,909 39,047 
Bank and other loans  38,400 - 38,400 
Payables to suppliers and other liabilities  8,262 - 8,262 

Total liabilities  61,800 23,909 85,709 

Net foreign exchange position  (29,712) (17,671) (47,383) 

 

In BGN Thsd. 

December 31, 2020  BGN  Euro  Total 
Assets    

Cash  255 1 256 
Net investment in financial leasing  - 10,312 10,312 
Other financial assets (assignment receivables)  15,751 - 15,751 
Other receivables from related parties  1,731 - 1,731 
Loans granted  19,574 - 19,574 
Financial assets at fair value  1,322 - 1,322 

Total assets  38,633 10,313 48,946 

 

  In BGN Thsd. 

December 31, 2020  BGN  Euro  Total 
Liabilities    
Liabilities to related parties  12,622 23,909 36,014 
Bank and other loans  25,471 - 25,471 
Accounts payable to suppliers and other 
liabilities  

24,192 - 24,292 

Total liabilities  46,479 23,909 70,388 

Net foreign exchange position  (7,846) (13,596) (21,442) 

 

 Interest risk 

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments may change as a 

result of changes in market interest rates, or that the interest costs and revenue of variable 

interest instruments may change due to changes in the percentage chosen as basic. 

 The interest related obligations on loans received by the Company are tied to the 

interest receivables from the lessees and are lower in value and percentage than the current 
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revenue from interest. The Company's receivables from interest are based on a floating 

interest rate, taking into account the changes in market conditions and are recalculated 

periodically: they are updated on a semi-annual and annual basis. This suggests that the 

book value is very close to their fair value. 

 

 (d) Equity  management 

 The purpose of “Leasing Finance” EAD regarding capital management is to maintain a 

capital structure which supports the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in 

order to provide returns for the proprietor and benefits for the related parties. Net liabilities 

are defined as the sum of all loans less cash on hand and in the bank. Total capital is defined 

as the sum of equity and net liabilities. 

 

In BGN Thsd.  31.12.2021 31.12.2020 
Type   
Total debt capital, incl.:  100,893  86,194 
Trade payables  23,446  24,192 
Obligations for bank and other loans  38,400  25,988 
Trade credits and loans to related parties and commodity 
credits  

39,047  36,014 

Reduced by cash and cash equivalents  (1,064)  (256) 
Net debt capital  99,829  85,938 
Total equity  20,802  20,578 
Total equity 120,631  106,516 

Ratio of net debt to total capital  0.828  0.807 

 

   

 6. Expense on interest, net 

 

In BGN Thsd.  2021 2020 

Revenue from interest on financial leasing and other 
receivables  

1,661  1,606 

Depreciated management fee under financial leasing 
contracts  

44  37 

Total revenue from interest 1,705  1,643 
Interest expenses, etc., on bank loans  (1,463)  (1,206) 
Interest expense on other loans  (1,410)  (1,180) 
Total expense on interest  (2,873)  (2,386) 
Total revenue from interest, net  (1,168)  (743) 

 

7. Other revenue/(expense), net 

 

In BGN Thsd.  2021 2020 

Proceeds from the sale of seized assets  50 523 
Book value of assets sold  (42) (440) 
Gain/(loss) on sale of seized assets  8 83 
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Proceeds from sale of receivables  19,627 3,848 
Book value of receivables sold  (19,826) (4,143) 
Loss from sale of receivables  (199) (295) 
Proceeds from the sale of other assets  462 1,384 
Book value of other assets sold  (426) (1,356) 
Profit/(loss) from sale of other assets  36 28 
Profit from reversal of depreciated financial assets  2,978 1,879 
Receivables written off  (1,073) - 
Exchange differences, net  160 4 
Subsequent assessments, net  1,059 - 
Revenue from operations with financial instruments  428 - 
Dividend revenue  49 - 
Other, net 46 138 

Total other revenue/(expense), net 3,492 1,837 

 

8. Administrative costs 

 

In BGN Thsd.  2021 2020 
Cost of materials  (4)  (6) 
Costs for external services  (926)  (503) 
Wages and social costs  (648) (634) 
Depreciation  (1,327)  (1,093) 
Costs related to litigation  (2)  (4) 
Taxes and commission fees (72) (3) 
Other  (189)  (153) 
Total administrative expenses  (3,168)  (2,396) 

   
   

Costs for external services consisting of: 

 

In BGN Thsd.  2021 2020 
   
Maintenance costs of newly acquired aircraft  (581)  (330) 
Legal fees, audits, consultations and subscriptions (128)  (60) 
Rent  (86)  (81) 
Advertisement  -  (9) 
Telephone, postal and courier services (8)  (6) 
Other  (123)  (17) 
Total cost of external services  (926)  (503) 

   
 9. Taxation 

 In conformity with the Corporate Revenue Tax Act, the corporate tax rate for 2021 and 

2020 is 10%. Tax expense/(revenue) is formed as follows: 

 

In BGN Thsd.  2021 2020 
   
Profit before taxation  224 171 
Tax rate  10%  10% 

Estimated tax expense  22  17 

From adjustments for which no deferred tax asset has 
been reported  

(22)  (17) 
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Reported tax assets on temporary differences  -  - 
Deduction of losses from previous periods  -  - 

Total expense/(revenue) for taxes  -  - 

 

 As of December 31, 2021, the accumulated tax losses carried forward, subject to 

deduction, amount to BGN 4,901 thousand (2020 – BGN 17,292 thousand). The company 

has not reported a deferred tax asset on them as a result of an assessment regarding their 

potential future realization. The unreported tax asset is in the amount of BGN 490 thousand, 

and for 2019 – BGN 1,729 thousand. The right to deduct losses, as of December 31, 2021, 

will be repaid in 2023 in the amount of BGN 70 thousand and in 2026 - in the amount of BGN 

4,437 thousand. 

 10. Cash 

 

In BGN Thsd.  2021 2020 
   

Cash in bank accounts  282 256 

Advances granted 782 - 

Total cash  1,064 256 

   
 Cash balances are held in banks with credit ratings as follows: 

- long-term credit rating  B-     (S&P)  - BGN        7 thousand; 

-  long-term credit rating  BB- (BCRA)  - BGN 1,057 thousand; 

 The company considers that cash is exposed to a lower credit risk, which is why 

expected credit losses are not charged in the individual financial statement. 

 11. Net investment in financial leasing 

 

In BGN Thsd.  2021 2020 
   
Gross investment in financial leasing  9,438  14,403 
Unrealized financial revenue  (110)  (216) 
Net minimal lease payments  9,328  14,187 
Depreciation  (3,880)  (3,875) 

Net investment in financial leasing  5,448  10,312 

 

 The gross investment in financial leasing is distributed as follows: 

In BGN Thsd.  
2021 2020 

   
Maturity up to 1 year  6,059  4,993 
Maturity from 1 to 5 years  3,269  9,194 
Maturity over 5 years  -  - 
Depreciation (3,880) (3,875) 
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Gross minimal lease payments 5,448 14,724 

   

 The change in net investment in financial leasing for 2021 is shown below: 

In BGN Thsd.  
2021 2020 

   
Net investment in financial leasing as of January 1  10,312  14,724 
Principals under new lease contracts  230 963 
Lease installment principals due  (4,628)  (3,766) 
Other changes  3,414  2,266 
Depreciation  (3,880)  (3,875) 

Net investment in financial leasing  5,448 10,312 

 

 The movement in the depreciation of financial leasing receivables is shown in the table 

below: 

In BGN Thsd.  
2021 2020 

   
Balance as of January 1  (3,875)  (5,645) 
(Accrued)/reintegrated for the year  5  1,770 
Balance at 31 December  (3,870) (3,875) 

 

 Depreciation recoveries are the result of write-offs of receivables and the sale of 

receivables with assignments. Reintegrated depreciations are the result of collecting 

receivables or revising the amount of accrued depreciations of overdue receivables as a 

result of circumstances indicating objective events leading to a reduction in the loss from the 

non-collection of receivables in full. 

 The position “Net investment in financial leases” also includes receivables from related 

parties under contracts for financial and operational leases with a net book value as of 

December 31, 2021 in the amount of BGN 3,653 Thsd. (December 31, 2020: BGN 6,284 

Thsd.).  

 12. Reversely acquired assets 

 Reacquired assets by asset type as of the end of 2021. 

 

BGN Thsd. Opening 

balance 

2021 

Acquired 

in 2021 
Written off 

2021 
Depreciati

on  
Carrying 

amount 

Buildings 30 - (1) - 30 
Vehicles  132 - - - 132 

Trucks and heavy goods 
vehicles 

- - - - - 

Machinery and equipment 4 - (4) - - 

Balance as of December 
31  

166 - (3) - 161 
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Обратно придобити активи по вид актив към края на 2020 г. 

BGN Thsd. Opening 

balance 

2020 

Acquired 

in 2020 
Written off 

2020 
Depreciati

on  
Carrying 

amount 

Buildings 30 - - - 30 
Vehicles  - 789 (657) - 132 
Trucks and heavy goods 
vehicles 

- - - - - 

Machinery and equipment 4 - - - 4 
Balance as of December 
31  

34 789 (657) - 166 

The value of repossessed assets in 2021 of BGN 161 Thsd. is made up entirely of assets 

repossessed under leases and returned from operating leases. The value of repossessed 

assets in 2020 amounting to BGN 166 Thsd. is formed entirely from assets repossessed 

under lease agreements.  

 13. Goods 

In BGN Thsd.  
2021 2020 

   
Balance as of January 1  5,060 - 
Purchases  59 5,060 
Book value of goods sold (317) - 
Depreciation (584)  
Reclassification from seized assets  (125) - 

Balance as of December 31  4,093 5,060 

   

 On December 1, 2020, a purchase and sale agreement was concluded, pursuant to 

which the Company acquired the right of ownership of 3 aircraft - helicopters - at the total 

cost of BGN 3,000 thousand, as well as spare parts for the aircraft at a cost of BGN 1,937 

thousand. As of 31.12.2021, the assets have not been leased (“dry” lease of aircraft). 

 In 2021, the Company depreciated the aircraft to their net realizable value, determined 

by an independent licensed appraiser, as a result of which a depreciation in the amount of 

BGN 584 thousand was charged. 

 14. Long term assets 

 

In BGN Thsd. 
Airplanes 

and 
engines 

Machines 
and 

equipment 

Office 
furniture 

Transport 
vehicles 

 

Intang
ible 

assets 
Other Total 

Balanced value        

Balance as of January 
1, 2021  

43,633 108 300 654 436 87 45,218 

Acquired assets  264 - 40 275 9 - 588 
Other changes  (300) - - - - - (300) 
Assets written off  - - - (48) - - (48) 
Balance as of 
December 31, 2021  

43,597 108 340 881 445 87 45,458 
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Depreciation 

Balance as of January 
1, 2021  

(7,417) (108) (196) (464) (412) (60) (8,657) 

Depreciation for the 
year  

(805) - (19) (74) (9) (5) (912) 

Depreciation written off  - - - 35 - - 35 
Balance as of 
December 31, 2021  

(8,222) (108) (215) (503) (421) (65) (9,534) 

 

Balanced value         

As of December 31, 
2020  36,216 - 104 190 24 27 36,561 
As of December 31, 
2021  35,375 - 125 378 24 22 35,924 

 

 

In BGN Thsd. 
Airplanes 

and 
engines 

Machines 
and 

equipment 

Office 
furniture 

Transport 
vehicles 

 

Intang
ible 

assets 
Other Total 

Balanced value        

Balance as of 
January 1, 2020  

38,556  108  234  2,294  436  102  41,730 

Acquired assets  259  -  66  112  -  -  437 

Other changes  4,818  -  -  -  -  -  4,818 

Assets written off  -  -  -  (1,752)  -  (15)  (1,767) 

Balance as of 
December 31, 2020  

43,633  108  300  654  436 87  45,218 

 

Amortization 

Balance as of 
January 1, 2020  

(6,913)  (107)  (86)  (1,026)  (402)  (78)  (8,612) 

Depreciation for the 
year  

(504)  (1)  (118)  (51)  (10)  (2)  (686) 

Depreciation written 
off  

-  -  8 613  -  20 641 

Balance as of 
December 31, 2020  

(7,417) (108)  (196)  (464)  (412)  (60)  (8,657) 

 

Book value        
As of December 31, 
2019 

31,643 1 148 1,268 34 24 33,118 

As of December 31, 
2020 

36,216 - 104 190 24 27 36,561 

 

 Due to the established indications, the Company depreciated the aircraft to their net 

realizable value. 
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 Fixed assets include cars for which operational lease contracts have been concluded. 

As of December 31, 2021, there are 29 (2020: 30) operational lease contracts. 

 The aircraft and aircraft engines acquired and put into operation during the period 2017 

- 2021, indicated in the tables above, are leased on operational leasing (“dry” lease of the 

aircraft). 

 Aircraft assets with a balance sheet value of BGN 18,457,000, purchased with a bank 

investment loan, are pledged as collateral in favor of the bank. 

 The expected rental payments from the operational leasing are as follows. 

In BGN Thsd.  2021 2020 
   
Up to 1 year  106  8,067 
From 1 to 5 years  18,611  18,204 

Total  18,717  26,271 

   
   

 14.1 Assets with a “right-of-use”  

 Right-of-use assets are included in the net book value of fixed assets in the separate 

statement of the company`s financial status as follows: 

 

In BGN Thsd. Buildings 
Total assets 

with right of use 
Gross book value   
Balance as of January 1, 2021  2,036  2,036 
Newly acquired assets  53  53 
Balance as of December 31, 2021  2,089  2,089 
Amortization   

Balance as of January 1, 2021  (712)  (712) 
Depreciation for the year  (415)  (415) 
Balance as of 31 December 2021  (1,127)  (1,127) 
Book value as of December 31, 2021  962 962 

 

In BGN Thsd. Buildings 
Total assets 

with right of use 
Gross book value   
Balance as of January 1, 2020  2,036  2,036 
Newly acquired assets  - - 
Balance as of December 31, 2020  2,036 2,036 
Amortization   

Balance as of January 1, 2020 (305)  (305) 
Depreciation for the year  (407) (407) 
Balance as of 31 December 2020 (712) (712) 
Book value as of December 31, 2020 1,324 1,324  

 

 15. Costs of acquisition of fixed assets 

In BGN Thsd. 2021 2020 
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Balance as of January 1  - 3,998 
Accrued costs for acquisitions during the year  26,727 820 
Commissioned fixed /long term/ assets  (2,149)  (4,818) 

Balance as of December 31, 2020  24,578 - 

 

 As of December 31, 2021, the costs for the acquisition of long term /fixed/ assets are in 

the amount of BGN 24,578 thousand - collected costs in connection with the purchase, 

delivery, repair and bringing to the state of airworthiness of 3 airplanes AIRBUS A 319-111 

and 4 Airbus EU 135 helicopters. In 2022 they are expected to be put into operation and 

leased under operational lease contracts. 

 

 15. Investment property 

 The Company's investment properties include landed properties located in Pleven, 

which are held for the purpose of obtaining rental income or for capital appreciation. 

 For information on determining the fair value of investment properties, see Note 31. 

 The changes in carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial position can 

be summarized as follows: 

In BGN Thsd. 2021 2020 
   

Balance sheet value as of January 1 - - 
Newly acquired assets: 2,149 - 
- by purchase 2,149 - 

Net gain from change in fair value 1,692 - 
 3,841 - 

 Investment properties are pledged as collateral for received bank loans. 

 For 2021, rental income and direct operating expenses are not reflected. 

 

 16. Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 

 

In BGN Thsd. 2021 2020 

   
Investments in subsidiaries  7,393  5,650 
Depreciation  (100)  (100) 
Investments in associates  158 227 
Investments in joint ventures  30  30 

 7,481 5,807 

 

 Investments in subsidiaries as of December 31, 2021 represent:   

- BGN 10,000 – 100% of the capital of a subsidiary established in 2017 in the 

Republic of Macedonia – “Leasing Finance” LLC, Skopje. The capital of the 

subsidiary is fully paid up; 
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-  BGN 4, 303 thousand – 100% of the capital of “M RENT” EAD, which is a company 

registered in the Republic of Bulgaria, engaged mainly in leasing assets. The sum of 

BGN 4,303 thousand represents the cost of acquiring 100% of the shares of the 

subsidiary's capital, acquired in 2017. At its meeting in December of 2020, the 

Board of directors decided to increase the capital with a cash contribution in the 

amount of BGN 350 thousand. 

As of 31.12.2020, the investment in “M RENT” EAD is BGN 4,653 thousand. 

-  BGN 781 thousand - 100% of the capital of “Hems Air” EOOD - under the 

Agreement for the purchase of all shares of the registered capital of the Company 

"Hems Air" EOOD /previous name Darik Sky/, representing 13,000 /thirteen 

thousand/ shares with a nominal value of BGN 180 each or in total to a nominal 

value of BGN 2,340,000, constituting 100% of the Company's capital at a price of 

BGN 450,000 and available cash or a total selling price of BGN 780,504. As of 

31.12.2019, with a protocol from the meeting of the Board of directors it was decided 

that the investment should be depreciated in the amount of BGN 100,000. On 

09.08.2021, with a protocol from the meeting of the Board of directors, a decision 

was made to increase the capital of “Hems Air” in the amount of BGN 137,160. The 

balance sheet value of the investment in "Hems Air" EOOD, as of 31.12.2021, is 

BGN 817,664. 

 As of 31.12.2021, the Company's management has reviewed the recoverable 

amount of the investment in “Hems Air” EOOD, as a result of which it considers that 

there are no indications of a depreciation. 

-  BGN 206 thousand - 100% of the capital of “New Web Market” EAD - under the 

purchase and sale agreement of all ordinary registered shares of the capital of the 

company "New Web Market" EAD, representing 50,000 /fifty thousand/ shares with 

a nominal value BGN 1 each, constituting 100% of the company's capital at a price 

of BGN 206,359.38 

The investments in associated enterprises as of December 31, 2020 represent 

-  BGN 227 thousand – 36% of the capital of “Finance Assistance Management” 

ADSIC, registered in the Republic of Bulgaria as a company with a special 

investment purpose related to the purchases and sales of receivables. The sum of 

BGN 227,000 represents the value of acquiring 36% of the shares of the company's 

capital upon its establishment. The other shareholder in the company is the parent 

company “Finance Info Assistance” EOOD. The company's capital was increased in 

2019 to the amount of 52 BGN thousand and in 2021, 69,780 shares at a total value 
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of BGN 69,780 were sold. As of 12/31/2021 the balance sheet value is BGN 158 

thousand - 24.26% of the Company's capital. 

-  BGN 48 thousand - 95% of the capital of “Aviation Training Academy” AD /the 

company was established in 2021/, represent 47,500 /forty seven thousand five 

hundred/ shares with a nominal value of BGN 1 each. 5% of the capital of “Aviation 

Training Academy” AD /the company was established in 2021/, represent 2,500 /two 

thousand five hundred/ shares with a nominal value of BGN 1 each, owned by 

“Finance Info Assistance” EOOD. 

-  BGN 534 thousand - 100% of the capital of “LF Imoti” EOOD - under the Agreement 

for the purchase and sale of all ordinary registered shares of the Company's capital, 

representing 533,400 /five hundred and thirty-three thousand and four hundred/ 

shares with a nominal value of BGN 1 each, constituting 100% of the Company's 

capital at a price of EUR 270,000 

-  BGN 25 thousand - 100% of the capital of “Keti Travel” EOOD - under the Purchase 

and Sale Agreement of all ordinary registered shares of the Company's capital, 

representing 50 /fifty/ shares with a nominal value of BGN 100 each, constituting 

100% of the capital to the Company at a price of BGN 25,000 

-  BGN 1,000 thousand - 100% of the capital of Aircraft Lease EOOD - under the 

Purchase and Sale Agreement of all ordinary registered shares of the Company's 

capital, representing 100,000 /one hundred thousand/ shares with a nominal value 

of BGN 10 each, constituting 100 % of the Company's capital at a price of BGN 

1,000,000. 

-  The investment in joint ventures represents a 25% stake in the “Maya Residence” 

association. The company does not exercise control over the association. 

 The Company presents its investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint 

ventures at the acquisition cost. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, a review has been 

made which indicates that no conditions for the depreciation of the investments have been 

found to exist. 

 17. Other financial assets 

 
 
 
In BGN Thsd. 

 

 
2021 

 
 

2020 

 
Receivables from principal  

 
12,479  

 
12,497 
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Receivables from interest  5,745  5,113 
Depreciations  -  (1,859) 

Net book value of other financial assets  18,224  15,751 

 

 As of December 31, 2021, receivables in the amount of BGN 18,224 thousand are 

presented in the position “Other financial assets”. A significant part of them are acquired by 

the company under an assignment agreement from 2016 and a bond purchase agreement 

from 2019. The receivables are due for payment by an unrelated person and are formed by 

principal in the amount of BGN 9,776 thousand and interest in the amount of BGN 5,708 

thousand, including interest accrued in 2021 in the amount of BGN 635 thousand. The total 

gross balance sheet value of these receivables is in the amount of BGN 18,224 thousand. 

 The change in the amount of depreciation of the other financial assets can be 

presented as follows: 

In BGN Thsd. 2021 2020 

   
Balance as of January 1  1,859  1,780 
Depreciation loss  -  79 
Reversal of depreciation loss  (1,859)  - 

Balance as of December 31  -  1,859 

   

 18. Deferred Tax Assets 

 

Temporary 
difference, unused 
tax losses, unused 
tax credits 

31 December 
2020 

Movement in deferred taxes 

for 2021 
31 December 

2021 
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Deferred tax assets 4,958   496 - - - - 4,958 496 

Depreciation         
Total deferred tax 
assets 

4,958 496 - - - - 4,958 496 

Deferred taxes (net) 4,958 496 - - - - 4,958 496 

 

 Deferred tax assets, in the amount of BGN 496 thousand, have been charged on the 

basis of a temporary taxation rate difference in the amount of BGN 4,958 thousand, 

representing the difference between the book value and the tax value of the depreciable 

fixed assets of the Company. 

 19.  Loans Provided 
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In BGN Thsd. 
2021 2020 

   
Receivables from principal  10,020  19,552 
Receivables from interest  184  68 
Depreciation  -  (46) 

Book value of granted loans  10,204  19,574 

 The receivables from granted loans, which are reported as of December 31, 2021, are 

non-current and current. The company has reported a depreciation loss for 2021 in the 

amount of BGN 0 thousand. (2020: BGN 46 thousand) 

 

 20.  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

In BGN Thsd. 2021 2020 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Stock exchange capital instruments  

3,386 
3,386 

1,322 
1,322 

 

 Short-term financial assets are valued at their fair value, determined on the basis of 

stock market quotations at the date of elaboration of the individual financial statements. 

 21. Other Assets 

In BGN Thsd. 
2021 2020 

 
Receivables from other customers, gross  

 
-  

 
7 

Depreciation of receivables from other customers  -  (7) 

Receivables from other customers, net  -  - 
Amounts prepaid for supplies under leasing 
contracts and other, gross  

5,681  7,910 

Depreciation of prepaid amounts for supplies  -  (35) 

Amounts prepaid for supplies under leasing 
contracts and other, net  

5,681  7,875 

Prepaid expenses  -  13 
VAT refund  91 537 
Settlements under guarantees and others  61  1,049 
Depreciation of other assets  -  (1,035) 

Total  5,833 8,439 

 

The change in the amount of the depreciation of the other assets can be presented as 

follows: 

In BGN Thsd. 2021 2020 

Balance as of January 1  1,077  1,067 
Loss from depreciation  -  10 
Reversal of the loss from depreciation 1,077 -  

Balance as of December 31  1,077 

 

 22. Obligations to suppliers and other obligations 
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In BGN Thsd. 2021 2020 

   
Payables to suppliers  6,368  6,326 
Liabilities for advances received from customers  4,637  6,114 
Liabilities under leasing contracts  967  1,370 
Obligations related to the personnel`s 
remuneration  

30  26 

VAT liabilities  -  - 
Aircraft maintenance reserve  10,517  9,666 
Other liabilities, including for guarantees  927 690 

Total 23,446 24,192 

 

 The amounts accumulated during the period 2017-2021 for the aircraft maintenance 

reserve totaling BGN 10,517 thousand, are related to the contracts for the operational 

leasing of the aircraft (“dry” lease of aircraft), concluded during the 2017-2021 period. The 

accumulated sums are for seven aircraft and ten aircraft engines which are put into operation 

and used by the lessee. The maintenance reserve sums are determined on the basis of the 

flight hours and cycles for the relevant month of aircraft and engine exploitation. The sums 

are set aside in separate funds and will be used for the maintenance of the aircraft and the 

engines. If, after the expiration of the terms of the lease contracts, unspent funds are found 

to exist, they will be retained by the Company. The funds received by the lessee for the 

maintenance reserve of the aircraft and engines are accumulated in a separate payment 

account of the Company, specially created for the purpose and they cannot be used for any 

purposes, other than for the technical maintenance of the aircraft and engines. 

 22.1. Obligations under lease contracts 

 

In BGN Thsd. 2021 2020 

   
Liabilities under lease contracts - non-current part  548 967 
Leasing obligations - current part  419  403 

Liabilities under leasing contracts  967  1,370 

 

 During 2019, the company has leased premises in an office building. Except for short-

term leases and the leasing of low-value assets, each lease is reflected in the separate 

report on the financial status of the company as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. 

Variable lease payments which do not depend on any index or variable rate (for example, 

lease payments based on a percentage of the Company's sales) are excluded from the initial 

measurement of the lease liability and asset. The Company classifies its right-of-use assets 

consistently within its real estate properties, plant and equipment (see Note 14). 

 The future minimal lease payments as of December 31, 2021 are as follows: 
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           Minimal lease payments due 

In BGN Thsd. 
up to 1 

year 
1-2 

years 
2-3 

years 
3-4 

years 
4-5 

years 
after 5 
years 

 

Total 

December 31, 2021 

Lease payments 450  450  113  -  -  -  1,013 

Financial expenses  (31)  (14)  (1)  -  -  -  (46) 

Net present value 419  436 112 - -  967 

 

 23. Bank and other credits 

In BGN Thsd. 
 

 

Bank/Creditor Amount Allowed  Currency  2021  2020 

Legal entities  14,156  BGN 14,156  14,117 
Banks 38,119  BGN 24,244 11,871 

Total 52,275  38,400  25,988 

 

 The terms of the received bank loans are: 

-  “UniCredit Bulbank” AD – date of conclusion: March 31, 2017; authorized amount: 

up to BGN 21,574 thousand; maturity date of the last installment – March 7, 2023; 

interest rate – ODI+ 4.082%, min. 4.25%; repayment – monthly; type - investment 

for the purchase and repair of aircraft and engines. The principal obligation under 

the loan amounts to BGN 9,636 thousand, of which BGN 5,556 thousand is the 

current part and BGN 4,080 thousand is the non-current part. The loan is secured by 

a pledge of the aircraft in favor of the bank. 

-  “UniCredit Bulbank” AD - date of conclusion: May 5, 2017; authorized amount: up to 

BGN 2,000 thousand; maturity date of the last installment – May 31, 2024; interest 

rate – ODI+ 2%; repayment – monthly; type - investment for the purchase of assets 

for financial leasing. The principal obligation under the loan amounts to BGN 291 

thousand, of which BGN 206 thousand is the current part and BGN 85 thousand is 

the non-current part. The loan is secured by a pledge of receivables under financial 

leasing contracts. 

-  “Texim Bank” AD - date of conclusion: January 22, 2021; authorized amount: BGN 

600 thousand; maturity date of the last installment – January 20, 2023; interest rate - 

BLP+ 1%, total agreed rate at the time of granting the loan is 3.5%; repayment – 

monthly; type - working capital. The loan is secured by a pledge of receivables 

under financial leasing contracts. 
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-  “Central Cooperative Bank” AD - date of conclusion: November 8, 2021; authorized 

amount: BGN 1,445 thousand; maturity date of the last installment – November 8, 

2031; interest rate - variable interest rate, calculated as the sum of RLPKKK plus a 

surcharge of 1.41%, but not less than 2.2%; as of the date of the contract, the 

variable interest rate is 2.2%; repayment – 120 months, 12 months grace period, 

then monthly; type - for the purchase of 100% of the company shares of “LF Imoti” 

EOOD and financing the acquisition of real estate. The loan is secured by a 

mortgage on real estate. 

-  “Central Cooperative Bank” AD - Overdraft - date of conclusion: March 23, 2021; 

authorized limit: BGN 12,500 thousand; maturity date of the last installment – 

January 12, 2022; interest rate - variable interest rate, calculated as the sum of 

RLPKKK plus a surcharge of 1.41%, but not less than 2.2%; as of the date of the 

contract, the variable interest rate is 2.2%; repayment – monthly interest; type – for 

the purchase of 4 helicopters and financing the acquisition of real estate properties. 

 24. Fixed capital 

 The share capital of the Company, as of December 31, 2021, is in the amount of BGN 

39,577 thousand. It is fully paid up and divided into 425,560 shares with a nominal value of 

BGN 93. 

 The sole proprietor of the Company's capital, since 2016, is “Finance Info Assistance” 

EOOD. 

 25. Related party transactions, receivables and liabilities 

 Related persons are persons exercising control over the Company, joint control or 

significant influence on making financial or operational decisions, as well as enterprises in 

which individuals from the Company's key management personnel hold shares, allowing 

them to exercise control, joint control or to exert significant influence on such enterprises. 

The Company's related parties include the proprietors, subsidiaries and associates, key 

management personnel and other related parties acting under common control. 

 In 2021 the accrued and remuneration paid out to the key management personnel are 

in the amount of BGN 234 thousand. 

 26. Transactions and settlements with related parties 

 The transactions and open balances of receivables from related parties, as of 

December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, are indicated in the tables below (in thousands 

of BGN): 

 

Deals with owners 2021 2020 
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 BGN  x 1000 BGN  x 1000 

Liabilities for loans received  33,332  35,318 
Interest related liabilities  461 656 
Obligations for cash contributions to the equity -  - 
Financial lease receivables  1  77 
Receivables from granted loans  8,163  61 
Interest expenses on credit  1,124  1,177 
Revenue from operational lease  2  2 
Revenue from interest on leasing 3  5 
Revenue from interest on loans 200  110 
Advance payments under assignment contracts  5,334  7,671 

 

 In their majority, the obligations to the owners are related to: 

-  a credit in the amount of BGN 23,909 thousand for the principal amount only and is 

the remainder of the sums transferred during the acquisition of the Company's 

shares in 2016, its obligation under a bank loan received from “Piraeus Bank” S.A., 

London branch. After the transfer, the obligation continues to accrue interest at the 

rate of 3M EURIBOR + 2%. With an annex dated 2020, a final maturity for 

repayment of the obligation in monthly installments until December 31, 2023 was 

contracted. 

-  a 2017 contract for a loan in the amount of BGN 10,100,000 at an annual interest 

rate of 6.9% and repayment term after covering the Company's obligations under 

the received bank loans, not earlier than 2022. The principal due for payment as of 

December 31 2021 is in the amount of BGN 7, 275 thousand - the obligation is 

entirely non-current. 

-  a 2018 contract for a loan of up to BGN 5,000 thousand, at an annual interest rate of 

6.3% and repayment term September 2023. The principal due for payment as of 

December 31, 2021 is in the amount of BGN 1,803 thousand - the obligation is 

entirely non-current; 

-  a 2018 contract for a loan in the amount of EUR 176,000, at an annual interest rate 

of 3.9% and a repayment term September 2022, with the repayment of the principal 

sum agreed in five monthly installments, the first of which is due in May 2022. The 

principal sum due for payment as of December 31, 2021 is in the amount of BGN 

345 thousand - the obligation is entirely non-current. 

 The receivables from the owners for granted loans are formed by obligations for 

principals in the amount of BGN 8,049 thousand and interest in the amount of BGN 114 

thousand. 

 The loans granted and outstanding, as of December 31, 2021, are: 
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-  under a 2020 contract for a loan in the amount of BGN 2,700 thousand, at an annual 

interest of 6.0% and repayment period July 31, 2022. The principal due, as of 

December 31, 2021, is in the amount of BGN 1,639 thousand – the obligation is 

entirely non-current. 

-  under a 2021 contract for a loan in the amount of BGN 6,626,000, at an annual 

interest of 3.0% and repayment term September 17, 2022. The principal due, as of 

December 31, 2021, is in the amount of BGN 6,410 thousand – the obligation is 

entirely non-current. 

 

Companies under common control 2021 2020 
 BGN  x 1000 BGN  x 1000 

Operational lease receivables  3,653  6,485 
Receivables from granted loans  1,250  12,724 
Accounts payable  1,395  3,300 
Obligations for loans received 5,092 - 
Interest obligations 162 - 
Operational lease revenue  1,033  1,313 
Revenue from interest on loans  473 335 

 

 The Company's receivables under operational leases are under dry lease agreements 

for aircraft (aircraft and engines) in the amount of BGN 3,653 thousand. Regarding the 

receivables under aircraft dry lease agreements, a deferred payment agreement has been 

signed between the companies. 

 The loans receivables amounting to BGN 1,250 thousand represent the principal 

amount of a loan granted. 

 The principal amounts payable to companies under common control under loans 

granted are:  

  • 2021 loan agreement, annual interest rate of 4% and repayment term 2022. The 

principal payable as at 31 December 2021 is BGN 4,712 thousand and interest is BGN 159 

thousand - the liability is fully current. 

 • Under a loan agreement dated 2021, bearing interest at 2.7% per annum and 

maturing 2022. The principal amount due at 31 December 2021 is BGN 380 thousand and 

interest – BGN 3 thousand – the liability is fully current. 

 

Companies under common control 2021 2020 
 BGN  x 1000 BGN  x 1000 

Assignment receivables (price of the cession)  77  1,600 
Provided loan  - - 
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The Company's receivables represent the price owed by the counterparty under the 

assignment agreement dated 2020, with the contractual maturity date for its final payment 

being June 30, 2021. 

 

Subsidiary 2021 2020 
 BGN  x 1000 BGN  x 1000 

Obligations for received loans  -  40 
Expense on interest  1  3 
Receivables for services rendered  -  104 
Proceeds from granted loans  790 730 

 

 Loans receivable from subsidiaries consist of liabilities for principal amounting to BGN 

721 thousand and interest amounting to BGN 69 thousand. 

 

 27. Balanced value of the obligations arising from financial activities 

BGN  x 1000 
Credits and  

loans 
received 

Total 

   

Balance sheet value as of 31.12.2020  62,002  51,827 
Changes resulting from cash flows from financial 
activities 

  

Proceeds from received credits and loans  38,161 23,973 
Payments on credits and loans received  (23,095)  (14,682) 
Interest paid on credits and loans  (2,157)  (1,185) 
Total changes as a result of cash flows from financing 
activities  

12,909  8,106 

Other, non-monetary changes  2,535  2,069 
Balance sheet value on Dec. 31, 2021  77,446  62,002 

 

 28. Contingent assets and liabilities 

 The Company is a party to various lawsuits filed against lessees having overdue 

obligations. Details of these cases are not disclosed here in order not to reveal information 

which could affect their outcome or which could be misused by third parties. 

 29. Fair value assessment 

 The financial assets and liabilities, reported at their fair value in the individual report on 

the company`s financial status, are grouped into three levels in conformity with the set fair 

value hierarchy. This hierarchy is determined on the basis of the significance of the inputs 

used in determining the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities as follows: 

-  1 Level: market prices (unadjusted) on the active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities; 
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-  Level 2: inputs, other than the market prices included in Level 1, which can be 

observed in relation to an asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly 

(based on the prices); and 

-  3 Level: input information about an asset or liability which is not based on the 

currently available market data. 

 A financial asset, or liability, is classified at the lowest level of significant information 

input used to determine its fair value. 

 

 

 

 

 

31 December 2021  Note  Level 1 
BGN Thsd. 

Level 2 
BGN Thsd. 

Level 3 
BGN Thsd. 

Total 
BGN Thsd. 

Financial assets      
Securities traded on the stock 
exchange 

3,386  -  -  3,386 3,386 

Fair value 3,386  -  -  3,386 3,386 

 

31 December 2021 Note  Level 1 

BGN Thsd. 

Level 2 

BGN Thsd. 

Level 3 

BGN Thsd. 

Total 

BGN Thsd. 

Financial assets      
Securities traded on the stock 
exchange  3,386 - - 3,386 

Fair value  3,386 - - 3,386 

      
Non-financial liabilities      

Investment property 0 - 3,841 - 3,841 

Fair value  - 3,841 - 3,841 

 

31 December 2020 Note  Level 1 
BGN Thsd. 

Level 2 
BGN Thsd. 

Level 3 
BGN Thsd. 

Total 
BGN Thsd. 

Financial assets      
Securities traded on the stock 
exchange 

22 1,322  - -  1,322  

Fair value  1,322  -  -  1,322 

 

 Determination of the fair value 

 The evaluation methods and techniques, used in determining the fair value, have not 

changed when compared to the previous reporting period. 

 a) securities and bonds traded on the stock exchange 
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 All market-traded capital instruments and bonds are presented in the Bulgarian Lev 

and are publicly traded on the Bulgarian stock exchange. The fair values were determined on 

the basis of their stock market prices on the reporting date. 

 (b) Investment properties 

 The Company's investment properties were purchased during the current reporting 

period. The fair values have been determined by an independent licensed valuer based on 

observable market data of comparable analogue properties. 

 30. Events after the end of the reporting period 

 Since the end of 2019, an a new epidemic – called the “Corona virus” disease – has 

had a profound impact on the  entire world. Initially, it came from China and in early 2020 

went on to blockade the economic life and the supplies from China. Due to the trend in 

increasing cases of infected and sick people, at the beginning of March 2020, the WHO 

officially declared the spread of the SARS-CoV-2 virus and the disease caused by it – 

COVID-19 – as a pandemic. On March 13, 2020, the National Assembly of the Republic of 

Bulgaria declared a state of emergency in the country due to the Corona virus special anti-

epidemic measures and restrictions were introduced. The state of emergency lasted until 

May 13, 2020. As a result of an amendment to the Bulgarian legislation in May of 2020, the 

Minister of Health was given the opportunity, after the relevant sanction of the Government of 

Bulgaria, to declare an epidemic-related emergency situation starting on May 14 until June 

14, 2020 which was subsequently extended several times, including until the end of March 

2022. 

 The pandemic, and the announced state of emergency in the country have caused a 

significant decrease in economic activity and have generated significant uncertainty and 

unpredictability of the future macroeconomic processes. The subsequently declared 

emergency epidemic situation has brought to the reduction of some of the measures which 

were introduced during the state of emergency, but despite this situation the current 

measures also have an impact on the economic activities in the country. 

 During almost the whole of 2020, various restrictive measures were introduced in 

various countries around the world, including some restrictions on travel and transportation, 

placing individual people - as well as entire settlements and regions - under a full or partial 

quarantine with the European continent being one of the most effected by the pandemic. 

These restrictions have exerted a deteriorating impact on supplies and have led to economic 

difficulties for all players on the market  plus a considerable slowdown in the economic 

development of Europe and other parts of the world. A huge number of people have lost their 

jobs - in the Republic of Bulgaria, in Europe and, indeed, throughout the world. 
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 By the end of 2021, normal economic life was not really restored not only in the country 

but also abroad. The Bulgarian government has introduced various economic and social 

measures the purpose of which is to support, albeit partially, the effected industries and 

businesses as a result of the pandemic; states of emergency and restrictions were 

introduced in the country and abroad. A special law was passed in connection with the 

introduced state of emergency as well as changes and supplements to a number of other 

laws. Various terms, including taxation related periods, were extended during 2020 and 

2021. Commercial banks were allowed to contract grace periods with their customers, 

rescheduling of bank loans etc. Various financing schemes were approved and secured 

under programs from the EU and from the state budget of the Republic of Bulgaria. 

 The year 2020 saw the development and testing of vaccines against COVID-19, which 

took place in several countries at a varying pace and success of the testing procedures. By 

the end of 2020, as well as the beginning of 2021, based on the positive evaluations made 

by the European Medicines Agency and the European Commission to the EU the authorities 

granted authorization for use, on the territory of the EU, of four vaccines against COVID-19. 

Vaccinations started simultaneously throughout the EU on 27 December 2020. The 

expectation is that by vaccinating a sufficient number of EU residents, and globally, the 

spread of the virus and of the COVID-19 disease will be significantly reduced. It is not yet 

possible to predict whether this will happen by the end of 2022 and if it does, when will that 

happen exactly. 

 Depending on the duration of the imposed restrictions, the effectiveness of the 

vaccines and the returning to normal economic life, the effects would have a different impact 

on the future actions of the Company. In the case of imposed long-term restrictions, such a 

situation would lead to a permanent deterioration of the economic indicators and would 

reflect on all economic entities. 

 Despite the above said, and due to its more specific nature, the company's activity 

during 2021 has not been negatively affected; or at least not to a very significant degree. It 

has continued to serve its obligations and collect its receivables, thus achieving a positive 

financial result for the year. The company has not benefited from the economic and social 

measures, introduced by the government of the Republic of Bulgaria, in connection with the 

COVID-19 pandemic. 

 On February 24, 2022, the Russian Federation launched an armed invasion of the 

Ukraine. As a result, in the following days, economic and financial sanctions were imposed 

on Russia by the European Union and a number of other countries which - in addition to the 

effects on Russia itself - are expected to have a comprehensive negative effect on the world 
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economy and on almost every sphere of public life in the medium and long term. The 

company has no assets and no direct relationships with counterparties from the countries 

effected by the military conflict. The impact of events related to the military conflict on the 

overall economic situation may require a revision of some assumptions and judgements. This 

may result in material adjustments to the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities within 

the next financial year. Since the situation is very dynamic, the management cannot make a 

truly accurate forecast about the quantitative impact from the crisis on the Company's 

financial situation, but will take all necessary measures to limit the potential negative effects 

and shall protect the interests of all related parties (bond holders, shareholders, 

counterparties and others.). 

 

 In April 2022, the Company entered into a long-term credit agreement in connection 

with the purchase of two aircraft of significant value. In June 2022, the Company entered into 

an agreement to purchase 100% equity ownership of a non-public subsidiary.  

 

 31. Approval of the financial statement 

 The individual financial statement, as of December 31, 2021 (including the comparative 

information) has been approved for presentation by the Board of directors on 26.04.2022. 

 

 

 

The  undersigned  Oleg  Stoyanov  Ivanov  hereby  certify the veracity of the 

translation from Bulgarian into English of the present document. The translation 

consists of 85 pages.       Translator:…………………  

         /O. Ivanov  / 


